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SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED
RBERETMEZZ BRAF

Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability
A& 15 A 5% Stock Code : 0878
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Soundwiill
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 208 to 336, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

FEETEIR

Valuation of investment properties

REMEMRLE

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the inherent level of complex and subjective
judgements and estimates required in determining the fair values.

The Group’s investment property portfolio comprises retail,
commercial, industrial and residential properties located in Hong
Kong and is stated at fair value of HK$15,266,445,000, accounting
for approximately 85% of the Group’s total assets as at 31 December
2024 with a net fair value loss on investment properties of
HK$2,900,959,000 recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then
ended as disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMRESHPEERREIFFTENSTRX

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties included:

° Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and
objectivity of the Valuer and obtaining an
understanding of the Valuer’s scope of work
and their terms of engagement;

° Evaluating the appropriateness of the
Valuer’s valuation approaches to assess if
they meet the requirements of the HKFRSs
and industry norms;
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Key audit matter (Continued)
FEBEtEEGE)

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

REMEGEGER

The Group’s investment properties are measured using the fair value
model based on a valuation performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer (the “Valuer”). As disclosed in notes 5 and 17 to
the consolidated financial statements, in determining the fair values of
the Group’s completed investment properties, the Valuer has applied
income capitalisation method or direct comparison method, as
appropriate, for respective properties, which involves, inter-alia,
certain estimates, including appropriate capitalisation rates,
reversionary rental value and market transactions of comparable
properties, as appropriate; whereas, in determining the fair values of
the Group’s investment properties under re-development, the Valuer
has applied residual method which is dependent on the estimated
gross development value, estimated cost of development and
allowance of profit that duly reflected developer’s risk associated with
the development.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
BHESAPEEFAREASTENSIR(E)

o Challenging the reasonableness and
appropriateness of valuation models applied
based on available market information and
our knowledge of the property industry and
whether the methodologies are consistent
with those used in prior year; and

° Assessing the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the key inputs used in the
valuations, on a sample basis, based on
evidence of comparable market
transactions, existing tenancy profiles and
other publicly available information of the
property industry.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter (Continued)
FHAEENEIEE)

Assessment of the net realisable values
of properties for sale

HFEHEMEZTRREFEE

We identified the assessment of the net realisable values of the
Group’s properties for sale (the “PFS”) as a key audit matter due to
the subjective management judgements and estimates involved in the
determination of the net realisable value (the “NRV”) of the PFS.

As disclosed in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had PFS of HK$1,017,723,000 as at 31 December 2024. The
Group’s assessment of the carrying values of PFS, being the lower of
cost and NRV, takes into account the selling price ultimately
expected to be realised, the estimated costs to completion of the
PFS and costs necessary to make the sale.

The management of the Group determines the estimated selling price
of the PFS with reference to the market valuation reports available
from independent qualified professional valuers, which takes into
account the prevailing real estate market conditions and prevailing
market data on most recent sale transactions of similar properties.

Based on the management estimation of the NRV of the PFS and
after taking into consideration the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale, no write-down of PFS was considered necessary for
the year ended 31 December 2024.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
BHESHPREFABENSTENSX(E)

Our procedures in relation to the assessment of
the NRV of the PFS included:

Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and
objectivity of the Valuer and obtaining an
understanding of the Valuer’s scope of work
and their terms of engagement; and

Assessing the reasonableness of the
estimated selling price of the PFS estimated
by the management with reference to the
market valuation reports available from
independent qualified professional valuers,
on a sample basis, by comparing the
estimated selling prices to the market prices
less estimated costs necessary to make the
sale achieved in the same projects or
comparable properties, based on our
knowledge of the Group’s business and the
real estate industry.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group as a basis
for forming an opinion on the group financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Ho Sin Ying.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

20 March 2025
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fo 4R g S SU At 2 i A 3R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —F —[JF+—A=+—HIFFZ

2024 2023
—F-HmE —ET=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B &F BEFT BT
Revenue I 2=
Revenue from goods and B oo M AR B W AR
services 898,353 44,208
Rental income GER A PN 331,379 351,684
Total revenue s 6 1,229,732 395,892
Cost of sales [N N (528,706) (42,404)
Gross profit EF 701,026 353,488
Other income, gains and losses Equg A~ Uz R EE 7 71,721 437,888
Selling expenses HEER (84,787) (2,254)
Administrative expenses THEA (120,766) (126,818)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBAR 2 = 37 1,969 11,440
Net fair value loss on investment WEWMEATE
properties 518 F R 17 (2,900,959) (1,212,858)
Finance costs Bl & P AR 9 (75,868) (84,579)
Loss before income tax expense K AT15 5 5 S A5 48 10 (2,407,664) (623,693)
Income tax expense FrigBimAx 13 (83,907) (22,810)

Loss for the year FREBE (2,491,571) (646,503)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE=[J#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

2024 2023
—EB_ME —TEC-=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B &F BEFT BT
Other comprehensive FhEbz2zEBExX)
(expense)/income for the WK NBRFTEHE
year, net of income tax 14
Item that will not be reclassified to X 8 B 45 1~ & & 3 7 48
profit or loss: P57
Change in fair value of financial ERAFEFAEMEE
assets at fair value through WA (R A FERFTA
other comprehensive income Hmz2mEig ALz it
(“FVTOCI) BEEZATFEZE (3,383) 3,036
Item that may be reclassified KU TNIEEE ZR[5EEH 5
subsequently to profit or loss: FEFE -
Exchange loss on translation of REBINEB 2
foreign operations M B8 (3,692) (15,643)
Other comprehensive expense FAREMEEAS -
for the year, net of income tax MERAEBE (7,075) (12,607)
Total comprehensive expense (ERE2HEE X
for the year (2,498,646) (659,110)
(Loss)/profit for the year FEiEE R (B51E)
attributable to: it F
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIE PN (2,491,851) (646,511)
Non-controlling interests IV IR i = 280 8
(2,491,571) (646,509)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE = [JF+ =/ =+ —HI F&

2024 2023
—E-UE TR
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B &F BEFT BT
Total comprehensive eI ERE2E (X))
(expense)/income for the KA
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company AKRAREAA (2,498,498) (659,308)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR (148) 198
(2,498,646) (659,110)
Loss per share for loss EATHAAELER
attributable to owners of the BEazEREBE
Company for the year 16
Basic - IN HK$ # % (8.80) T HKS & ¥ (2.28) 7T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

By BB SIR O %

As at 31 December 2024 R —ZE—[iF+—H=+—H

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
K it EET T BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investment properties "EYE 17 15,266,445 18,171,015
Property, plant and equipment YE - BB NEE 18 112,361 114,714
Financial assets at FVTOCI BEAFEFAEMEEREA
L EE 21 39,938 43,006
Deposits paid for acquisition of WMz ZEMNT2
properties 2,750 —
Loan receivables FE B 3R 20 222,181 4,349
Total non-current assets BIERBEE 15,643,675 18,333,084
Current assets REBEE
Properties for sale HEWME 19 1,017,723 1,381,903
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E b e FR I8 20 155,214 146,940
Short-term bank deposits RERITT R 22 827,153 635,200
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 22 323,633 503,106
2,323,723 2,667,149
Assets classified as held for sales DERFEZEE 38 7,741 —
Total current assets WRENE E 2,331,464 2,667,149
Current liabilities mEBEE
Trade and other payables B 5N H A e RIE 23 566,266 544,983
Contract liabilities GHEE 24 30,939 189,382
Lease liabilities HEBA®EFE 25 15,652 16,921
Borrowings P 26 891,298 585,072
Provision for income tax Fri5 B 5 1 165,456 121,123
Total current liabilities wRBAE 1,669,611 1,457,481
Net current assets FBREBEE 661,853 1,209,668
Total assets less current HWEERREER
liabilities 16,305,528 19,542,752
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As at 31 December 2024 R —ZFE —F+—-H=+—H

2024 2023
—E-WE TE-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
K it EET T BT T
Non-current liabilities ERBDER
Borrowings BE 26 468,560 931,727
Lease liabilities HEAE 25 24,356 21,003
Deferred tax liabilities BRERBBAEE 27 135,871 130,160
Total non-current liabilities BIEREBE 628,787 1,082,890
Net assets BEE 15,676,741 18,459,862
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners EATHEA
of the Company FEiLRER
Share capital &N 28 28,331 28,331
Reserves (k] 29 15,648,410 18,429,908
15,676,741 18,458,239
Non-controlling interests FEIER L 35 - 1,623
Total equity SRR 15,676,741 18,459,862

The consolidated financial statements on pages 208 to 336 are authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 March
2025 and are signed on behalf by:

F208EIBAZMAEMBHREAR T _AF-_A_+HARESTSRENE YHUTETAREES:

Chan Hing Tat Chan Wai Ling
PREEE REZF
Director Director

EF EF
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GAaBlenER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 &% —ZF [+ —A=+—HIFFZ

2024 2023
—E-lE —E=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it BETI BT T

Operating activities EEERB
Loss before income tax expense BT HAZAIES (2,407,664) (623,693)
Adjustments for: BT EEEL a/‘7 #:
Interest income from financial assets at X A F{ETA B % 2 0115

FVTPL BEZHBWA (957) (2,286)
Interest income from loan receivables EREHF S HA (9,022) (596)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE  BHERREZEIR

equipment 383 7
Revaluation deficit on property, plantand 4% . FE R R E 2 EHEE

equipment 120 120
Forfeiture of deposits income R R & WA - (364,457)
Dividend received from financial assets at & A FETAEMBZ2ERA Z

FVOCI BBEEDWKRE (5,324) -
Other interest income Hofth M B A (49,458) (54,556)
Interest expenses on borrowings BEMBEZH 74,355 82,873
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEaBEMNEXH 1,513 1,706
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAEEERE 529 3,248
Depreciation of other property, Hibh MERZETE

plant and equipment 3,090 3,957
Impairment loss on trade receivables, net ‘2 5 & U 7% 18 I (5 /&5 18

of reversal (B EEED 1,729 659
Net fair value loss on investment KEWMERNTEBEFE

properties 17 2,900,959 1,212,858
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary PE—HBAR & 37 (1,969) (11,440)
Operating profit before working EEESHER 2 8% %

capital changes 508,284 248,470
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other Bo & EMEKFIBEGE M),

receivables B (8,217) 26,176
Decrease/(increase) in properties for sale {5 & W2 /4, (&) 358,863 (327,600)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 N EoAth JE A RIEE N 20,795 10,609
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities & &1 & & CRl 2), /3 A1 (158,443) 68,814
Net cash generated from operations EGHBEREFE 721,282 26,469
Income tax paid 2SR (33,863) (17,362)
Net cash generated from operating WEEBH R % FEE

activities 687,419 9,107
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BOBSREE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE = [JF+ =/ =+ —HI F&

2024 2023
—E-ME T =
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
iiaz3 BETT BETT
Investing activities BEEE
Purchase of financial assets at FVTOCI BEEATEFAAHMEZE
WAZHIBEE (311) (311)
Distribution received from financial assets & 2 *F TE ATAH A % HRAZ
at FVTOC| MBAED KRR 5,324 -
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL BB R A FEAEBZE Z
WBEE (197,820) (265,272)
Proceed from disposal of financial assets H & &R A FEFAEBZE Z
at FVTPL MG EEMBHIA 197,820 302,564
Placement of short-term bank deposits 77 558 B4R 1777 3K (2,163,851) (2,995,627)
Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits ~ #2 B8 BA $R 1717 3% 1,971,898 2,632,827
Advances to loan receivables BRTFRERRER (249,573) —
Repayment from loan receivables FE W B KB K 22,761 1,852
Additions to property, plant and EAME - BEREB
equipment (2,602) —
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEYE  BENMRE
plant and equipment FriS 5118 542 —
Proceeds from disposal of investment HE R E Y TS RIE
properties 48,642 149,821
Payment to acquire and construction of W EE R R IREWME 2
investment properties (28,245) (160,886)
Net cash inflows from disposal of a HE—HHBRARZESRA
subsidiary R 37 15,997 35,430
Interest received from financial assets at & A FEzF A B % 2 8115
FVTPL BE 2D WHE 957 2,286
Interest received from loan receivables JEl BB WF B 9,022 596
Other interest received Hth B WM B 49,458 54,556
Deposits received on disposal of HERBAR ZEWIZEE
subsidiaries - 43,200
Deposit received on disposal of PEREME 2B WZS
investment properties 793 305
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFHH 2 FH (319,188) (198,659)




ANNUAL REPORT 2024 “#k

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BOBSRER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE=[J#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

2024 2023
—EB-ME T =
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT

Financing activities Bl & & B
Repayments of bank loans BEPBITER (696,703) (685,728)
Bank loans raised EERITER 539,762 428,000
Interest paid on borrowings ENEERE (74,355) (82,873)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENEEEEFE (1,513) (1,706)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHNEARE (21,937) (24,393)
Final dividends paid ERARERE (283,309) (56,662)
Net cash used in financing activities BETE T L FEE (538,055) (423,362)
Decrease in cash and cash He&RBELEEMERDY

equivalents (169,824) (612,914)
Cash and cash equivalents as at R—A—BZzHRER

1 January He%EY 503,106 1,122,544
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExgauaFs

changes, net (9,649) (6,524)
Cash and cash equivalents as at R+=ZA=+—HZHE&R

31 December Ha%EY 323,633 503,106
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —F —[JF+—A=+—HIFFZ

Equity attributable to owners

of the Company
EATHEANEILELS

Capital

Share Share redemption
capital premium reserve
AAXED

S B% 153 itk (8 k&
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EETT EETT EBETRT

As at 1 January 2024 N=-TE-WME—HA—H 28,331 690,811 295
Loss for the year FREE - - -
Other comprehensive expense Hith2mEX
Change in fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI A FEFAEMEZERA ZHIBEE

ZAFEES = = -
Exchange loss on translation of foreign operations i & /8 4N ¥ 5 2 B 3 &5 18 - - =
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRELEMRAX - - -
Proposed final and special dividends for 2024 BE T WOERARERIRE

(note 15(a)) (M 5£15()) - = =

Final dividends paid for 2023 (note 15(b)) ENZZE_=FRHPRE

(Bt 5E15(0)) - = —
Disposal of a subsidiary to non-controlling interest a1 3F 22 A% 1 25 1 & — & I B A 7) - - -
As at 31 December 2024 R-E-_NE+-A=+—H 28,331 690,811 295
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Ereg Fob RS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE=[J#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

Equity attributable to owners

of the Company

AASHEANEIL#ER
Proposed
Investment final and Non-
revaluation Retained Exchange Special special controlling Total
reserve profits reserve reserve dividends Total interests equity
BREEM ERARHR
i R & i F EE 52 fi& 455 Tl {7k IR R @zt FEERER i
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
EETR EETR EETR EETR EETR EETR EETR EETR
3,424 17,490,794 (40,573) 1,848 283,309 18,458,239 1,623 18,459,862
- (2,491,851) - - - (2,491,851) 280 (2,491,571)
(3,383) - - - - (3,383) - (3,383)
— — (3,264) — — (3,264) (428) (3,692)
(3,383) (2,491,851) (3,264) - - (2,498,498) (148) (2,498,646)
- - - - (283,309) (283,309) - (283,309)
- 309 - - - 309 (1,475) (1,166)

41 14,999,252 (43,837) 1,848 - 15,676,741 - 15,676,741
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Ereg Enb LIRS

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE = [JF+ =/ =+ —HI F&

Equity attributable to owners

of the Company
RARHEAR N EIEE R
Capital
Share Share redemption
capital premium reserve
BB E
fig 7 & 15 % & 1
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
As at 1 January 2023 R=-F-=%—HA—H 28,331 690,811 295
Loss for the year FhEE — — _
Other comprehensive income/(expense) Hz2mEk A (FX%)
Change in fair value of financial assets at FVTOCI A FEFFAEMEZEWRA 2B EE
ZATFEEY - - -
Exchange loss on translation of foreign operations 2 & /& 4h ¥ 7% ~ [ 5 &5 18 — - -
Total comprehensive income/(expense) FREEZTKAN(FAX)
for the year — — —
Proposed final and special dividends for 2023 E_TEZ=FARERERIRE
(note 15(a)) (Fff 3E15(0)) — — -
Final dividends paid for 2022 (note 15(b)) ERNZEZ—F KRS
(Pt 5515(0)) — — —
As at 31 December 2023 R-E-=%+-H=+—H 28,331 690,811 295
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AN B R

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE=[J#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

RATHEBEANEGER
Proposed
Investment final and Non-
revaluation Retained Exchange Special special controlling Total
reserve profits reserve reserve dividends Total interests equity
REEH BEAHR
EH R BB 5 A &R 15 I 5 Rl R B #Et FEE R RE i AR RR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
388 18,420,614 (24,740) 1,848 56,662 19,174,209 1,425 19,175,634
— (646,511) — — — (646,511) 8 (646,503)
3,036 — — — — 3,036 — 3,036
— — (15,833) — — (15,833) 190 (15,643)
3,036 (646,511) (156,833) — — (659,308) 198 (659,110)
— (283,309) — — 283,309 — — —
— — — — (56,662) (56,662) — (56,662)

3,424 17,490,794 (40,573) 1,848 283,309 18,458,239 1,623 18,459,862
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 &2 —F —[JF+—A=+—HIFFZ

General Information

Soundwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated and domiciled in Bermuda. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 34
to the consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) is principally engaged in property
development, property leasing and provision of building
management services.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider the
Company’s ultimate holding party to be a discretionary trust
(the “Trust”), which Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace, executive
director of the Company, and her family members (including
Ms. Chan Wai Ling, executive director of the Company) are the
beneficiaries of the Trust.

—BEH
cHEEEERAR(ARE D ARBERE
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9% =5 iz #b 3k A Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ° 74~ ‘A @]
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e
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B m—IAERER(ZIER]  MARE
HWTEEBEERLEIREFREXE(BREAR
RERTEFREBL DRI RZEFAZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SO A B

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE=[J#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”)

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2024 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale

and Leaseback

Classification of
Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and
related amendments
to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

Non-current Liabilities
with Covenants

Amendments to HKAS 7 and  Supplier Finance
HKFRS 7 Arrangements

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

2. FERHIREETEENBR
HEA(FEMBHREELD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A S A B

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE = [JF+ =/ =+ —HI F&

2. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time
in the current year.

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and
additional guidance on the assessment of right to defer
settlement for at least twelve months from reporting date
for classification of liabilities as current or non-current,
which:

° specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are
in existence at the end of the reporting period.
Specifically, the classification should not be
affected by management intentions or
expectations to settle the liability within 12
months.

° clarify that the settlement of a liability can be a
transfer of cash, goods or services, or the entity’s
own equity instruments to the counterparty. If a
liability has terms that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms
do not affect its classification as current or
non-current only if the entity recognizes the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SO A B

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE=[J#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.1 New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020
Amendments”) and Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”) (Continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months
from reporting date which are conditional on the
compliance with covenants, the 2022 Amendments
specifically clarify that only covenants that an entity is
required to comply with on or before the end of the
reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting date, even if compliance with the covenant
is assessed only after the reporting date. The 2022
Amendments also specify that covenants with which an
entity must comply after the reporting date (i.e. future
covenants) do not affect the classification of a liability as
current or non-current at the reporting date. However, if
the entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject
to the entity complying with covenants within twelve
months after the reporting period, an entity discloses
information that enables users of financial statements to
understand the risk of the liabilities becoming repayable
within twelve months after the reporting period. This
would include information about the covenants, the
carrying amount of related liabilities and facts and
circumstances, if any, that indicate that the entity may
have difficulties complying with the covenants.

In accordance with the transition provision, the Group
has applied the new accounting policy to the
classification of liability as current or non-current
retrospectively.

The application of the amendments in the current year
had no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A B

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE = [JF+ =/ =+ —HI F&

2. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2 Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

Amendments to Amendments to the
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Classification and
Measurement of
Financial Instruments®
Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of
and HKAS 28 Assets between an
Investor and its
Associate or Joint

Venture!
Amendments to HKFRS Annual Improvements to
Accounting Standards HKFRS Accounting

Standards — Volume 11°
Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

HKFRS 18 Presentation and
Disclosure in Financial
Statements*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2026.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A SO A B

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE=[J#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2 Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
Amendments to the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments
The amendments to HKFRS 9 clarify the recognition and
derecognition for financial asset and financial liability and
add an exception which permits an entity to deem a
financial liability to be discharged before the settlement
date if it is settled in cash using an electronic payment
system if, and only if certain conditions are met.

The amendments also provide guidance on the
assessment of whether the contractual cash flows of a
financial asset are consistent with a basic lending
arrangement. The amendments specify that an entity
should focus on what an entity is being compensated for
rather than the compensation amount. Contractual cash
flows are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement
if they are indexed to a variable that is not a basic
lending risk or cost. The amendments state that, in some
cases, a contingent feature may give rise to contractual
cash flows that are consistent with a basic lending
arrangement both before and after the change in
contractual cash flows, but the nature of the contingent
event itself does not relate directly to changes in basic
lending risks and costs. Furthermore, the description of
the term “non-recourse” is enhanced and the
characteristics of “contractually linked instruments” are
clarified in the amendments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE = [JF+ =/ =+ —HI F&

2. Application of New and Amendments to
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

2.2 Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7
Amendments to the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments
(Continued)
The disclosure requirements in HKFRS 7 in respect of
investments in equity instruments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income are
amended. In particular, entities are required to disclose
the fair value gain or loss presented in other
comprehensive income during the period, showing
separately those related to investments derecognized
during the reporting period and those related to
investments held at the end of the reporting period. An
entity is also required to disclose any transfers of the
cumulative gain or loss within equity related to the
investments derecognized during the reporting period. In
addition, the amendments introduce the requirements of
qualitative and quantitative disclosure of contractual
terms that could affect the contractual cash flow based
on a contingent even not directly relating to basic lending
risks and cost.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026, with early
application permitted. The application of the
amendments is not expected to have significant impact
on the financial position and performance of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE=[J#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

Application of New and Amendments to 2. FEAMIREETEEUBER
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards HFEA(EHEEMBREEDD
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued) (48)
2.2 Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet 2.2 ElEMEMRERNEETEE
effective (Continued) M5 &8I (8)
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in BEEMBHERRFE18HHIFHE
Financial Statements ZERHE]

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements, which sets out requirements on
presentation and disclosures in financial statements, will
replace HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.
This new HKFRS Accounting Standard, while carrying
forward many of the requirements in HKAS 1, introduces
new requirements to present specified categories and
defined subtotals in the statement of profit or loss;
provide disclosures on management-defined
performance measures in the notes to the financial
statements and improve aggregation and disaggregation
of information to be disclosed in the financial statements.
In addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs have been moved
to HKAS 8 and HKFRS 7. Minor amendments to HKAS 7
Statement of Cash Flows and HKAS 33 Earnings per
Share are also made. HKFRS 18, and amendments to
other standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with early
application permitted.
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3. Basis of Preparation

3.1

3.2

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements on pages 208 to
336 have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary users.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

4. Summary of Material Accounting Policy
Information

41

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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4. Summary of Material Accounting Policy
Information (Continued)

41

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

4. EXEBRAFRBEE)
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4. Summary of Material Accounting Policy
Information (Continued)

41

Basis of Consolidation (Continued)

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company. All
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs).
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4. Summary of Material Accounting Policy
Information (Continued)

4.2

4.3

Investment Properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation (including
properties under construction or held for future
development for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude any
prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the properties) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes.

Buildings held for own use are stated at revalued
amount, being their fair value at the date of the
revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.
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4.3
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4. Summary of Material Accounting Policy 4. EXESHBRREMBMEGE)
Information (Continued)

4.3 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 4.3 Y¥  BERREE)

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial
recognition. To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold
land is presented as right-of-use assets included in
“property, plant and equipment” in the consolidated
statement of financial position except for those that are
classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value model. When the consideration
cannot be allocated reliably between non-lease building
element and undivided interest in the underlying
leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as
property, plant and equipment.

Any revaluation increase arising from revaluation of
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in asset revaluation reserve, except to
the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the
same asset previously recognise in profit or loss, in
which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the
extent of the decrease previously charged. A decrease in
net carrying amount arising on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss to the
extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the asset
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of
that asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a
revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus is
transferred to retained profits.

Other items of property, plant and equipment, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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4. Summary of Material Accounting Policy 4. EXESHBRREMBMEGE)
Information (Continued)

4.3 Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 4.3 Y¥  BERREE)

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing and capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or
valuation of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.
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4. Summary of Material Accounting Policy
Information (Continued)

4.3

4.4

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics
are accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group
reasonably expects that the effects on the consolidated
financial statements would not differ materially from
individual leases within the portfolio.
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4. Summary of Material Accounting Policy 4. EXESHBRENBMEE)

Information (Continued)
4.4 Leases (Continued)

44 HEE)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and
instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of car parks and office premises
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and
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4. Summary of Material Accounting Policy 4. EXESHBRENBMEE)
Information (Continued)

4.4 Leases (Continued) 44 HEE)

The Group as a lessee (Continued) TEEELERAN(E)

Right-of-use assets (Continued) EAEEE (&)

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in . REBFBREBHREBEE
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, BB E EAL R 2 H 8 5k
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring HEAEEBSEZHERRRIE
the underlying asset to the condition required by HERERK 2R REFEE ZK
the terms and conditions of the lease. ANfEET o

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any FAEEEZRKAREERNRFTT

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and ERREFREFE  UHHEEAEN

adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. EREFAEELFE -

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably RE B & B E A A H A 4 REEE

certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased AR EEERARZERAEEE

assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated from TheRft B AR =] B ERST 4 AT IR
commencement date to the end of the useful life. E - B - EAEEESKRAME

Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a ATABREEREFR Z2REE  LE

straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful MOETHRITE -

life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, REBEFEREEENATDE - K

plant and equipment”, the same line item within which Bkl B2 EHEEE (W

the corresponding underlying assets would be wH)ZR—IEE -

presented if they were owned.

Refundable rental deposits AREMTIEE

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under ERTRERSEZS HIRER MK

HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. HELAEIFRAR - T EAFE

Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are TE o RV RRELH 2 A FER

considered as additional lease payments and included in B RABEIINHENT  WETAFEA

the cost of right-of use assets. HEBEK o

Lease liabilities HEEE

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group AEEBRHEMREAE  EZEEE

recognises and measures the lease liability at the XNz HENFRERARTEHE

present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that B8 - ;TERENFIBER @ HEX
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments, RZWEHERS2FE - AEHA
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the FARNHERKBEZEEEER

lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in & o

the lease is not readily determinable.
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4. Summary of Material Accounting Policy 4. EXESHBRENBMEE)

Information (Continued)

4.4 Leases (Continued) 44 HEE)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever the lease term has changed or there is
a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.
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4. Summary of Material Accounting Policy 4. EXESHBRRENBMEE)
Information (Continued)

4.4 Leases (Continued) 44 HEE)
The Group as a lessor FTEEEEBLHEA
Classification and measurement of leases HEmMDEREZ
Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as AEBEAHHAANBEESEARME
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the HERKEHE -ZHENEKERE
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards BB EBEEERBREEENE
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the [R\ B N BN $E s 4n AR AR - FRIES
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All MEHEARMEREE - MBEHMEE
other leases are classified as operating leases. EEREAKEME -
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in KEHENHSWATIEBEMEEH
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the RABRRESEZNIERER - BEH
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating Rt EREENTHEE
and arranging an operating lease are added to the ERAFAHEEENREME  BEK
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are AREERARNREGEERAAX -
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over WEAFEBEATHENREYE
the lease term except for investment properties BR AN o

measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s rEEHEEBBAREE 2HS WA
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue. D25 R -

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract H1CIE 7 I 2 & 49 48 K 55 5
When a contract includes both leases and non-lease EGARBEEsHERIEEEAMK
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 “Revenue ok AEEgRABEUBERE
from Contracts with Customers” (“HKFRS 15”) to ERIEIRIBEEAHNBAITE S
allocate consideration in a contract to lease and non- B R R F1558 ) - AR
lease components. Non-lease components are BErREHERFHEEMEKLS o
separated from lease component on the basis of their FHEAKE D BIRIEEMESE BT

relative stand-alone selling prices. HEBKREBEMAKTD HHA -
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4. Summary of Material Accounting Policy
Information (Continued)

4.4

4.5

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were
not part of the original terms and conditions are
accounted for as lease modifications, including lease
incentives provided through forgiveness or reduction of
rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

4. EXEBREAFRBEE

4.4

4.5

HEE)

FEEELBHBEAE)
REMKE

BT RER SR ESREFTBYS
WEEAFSFETHE  LARA
FEETIENE - VHERF
NP EFABRSEAEANEIIEE
e

HEEE

BB B R 4R 15 SRR R AR B R K (B
EERELSHEEERRE BEBs
ResplHeRENEERES -

REFTERAME  AREKEEH
EMERTIERMBEAR - BhiHR
JR7G 70 & HE BE &) ) T8 1 Sk FE AR
EXE RIEFHENTEI>HEER

I8 o

MHEBEIR

MBEERMHRETEREEEKX
BTASHGRX ZFTNTEHER -
BERE-—BRIAEBEEZUBEEIR
RHAEERRBNBURRER - 2K
FAEERRTENIETS R A KED
BREZHERAXNEEZMBEE

o 2=

BHE-°




SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED 4%k 4 B4 2w

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A B

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE = [JF+ =/ =+ —HI F&

4. Summary of Material Accounting Policy 4. EXESHBRREMBMEGE)
Information (Continued)

4.5 Financial Instruments (Continued) 45 BEIAE)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially BEERVBABYI SR ATER
measured at fair value except for trade receivables £ EREFPANEEZE SRR
arising from contracts with customers which are initially 18 AR 35 B S B 7% ¥R &5 ZE Rl 81555 47
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction FitE ARIBHETHBEER
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or BRaETEREAFEFAEBR
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than CHBEERNBEE MEEESE
financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added LRI RIS ERERNZ SN
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets BEENMBAGZAFERFAL
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial M (REABRME) - BEEIZA
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the TEFAANER UKEESVBEE
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at MEEEEZZZHA - THEIRRE
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss. =R o

The effective interest method is a method of calculating ERAEEZAFTEVHEENNBE
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability & 55 A AN & A A B8 BRI 9 o5 i
and of allocating interest income and interest expense BUWARMEREZ 2% - BEFIX
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the RNV EESVBEGE 2B
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts s (WEE) BEHEAR - BEF AR
and payments (including all fees and points paid or REWA RN RERERIR =Y H
received that form an integral part of the effective interest REZEEFEINXR(BEERE
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) BRI RAARRE D2 TE B RE W E
through the expected life of the financial asset or ARETF - RS R E M E ST
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, ) e

to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

4.5.1 Financial assets 4.51 MIBEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of HMBEEEZ 7 HEREETE

financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions HEaATHRGEzHBEERE

are subsequently measured at amortised cost: BN AT =

. the financial asset is held within a business . B 75 & EETE AN B & 4935
model whose objective is to collect SRERABNEBER
contractual cash flows; and THB: &

e the contractual terms give rise on specified . ERBTNEERHEE
dates to cash flows that are solely payments EEAEINEENAKE
of principal and interest on the principal BEREFEZEERE -

amount outstanding.
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Information (Continued)

4.5 Financial Instruments (Continued)

45 MHBIHEE)

4.5.1 Financial assets (Continued) 4.51 HFEEE (45)
Classification and subsequent measurement of HMBEEEZDEREETZE
financial assets (Continued) (%)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.

HaRMEFZMBEERR
B ERA M 2R AG

= -

MBEEREBHERK
EENRSREETEN
ZEBEATHE K

AMBRR B ERMESL
ERENAE RARE

7C
BAGHNBZIRERE -

1 o>

FRAEEMMBEERRRAY
BFFABRTE  ERYTHE
RUMBEERY Mz RAK
BB EEETIFNBI &
BRMBE WS EAEIRER
BHIERZZGEHTER
K ARAE - A5 R AT A AT
ElEEREMEmEA(E
o2 EWAD2IBRAERE R
FEZEEE -




SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED 4%k 4 B4 2w

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A B

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE = [JF+ =/ =+ —HI F&

4. Summary of Material Accounting Policy 4. EXESHBRRENBMEE)

Information (Continued)
4.5 Financial Instruments (Continued)
4.5.1 Financial assets (Continued)

45 BBIAE)
4.51 I BEZE(E)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve;
and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified
to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained
profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly represent
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the other income, gains
and losses line item in profit or loss.
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4.5 Financial Instruments (Continued)

4.5.1 Financial assets (Continued)

45 BBIAE)
4.51 I BEZE(E)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on
financial assets (including trade and other
receivables, loan receivables, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents) and
financial guarantee contracts which are subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually for each debtor.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or
risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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0

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; or

° an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations.
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(0

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date
that the Group becomes a party to the
irrevocable commitment is considered to be
the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition of a financial guarantee
contract, the Group considers the changes
in the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the
following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two
years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised

in profit or loss.
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W)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
and forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. For a
lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the
cash flows used in measuring the lease
receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

For a financial guarantee contract, the
Group is required to make payments only in
the event of a default by the debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the ECL is
the present value of the expected payments
to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that
it incurs less any amounts that the Group
expects to receive from the holder, the
debtor or any other party.
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W)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for
which the effective interest rate cannot be
determined, the Group will apply a discount
rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and
the risks that are specific to the cash flows
but only if, and to the extent that, the risks
are taken into account by adjusting the
discount rate instead of adjusting the cash
shortfalls being discounted.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of
the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9;
and the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, cumulative amount of
income recognised over the guarantee
period.
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4.5 Financial Instruments (Continued)

45 MHBIHEE)

4.5.1 Financial assets (Continued) 4.5.1 I FEEE(E)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) M EEZFEE)
(v  Measurement and recognition of ECL v TEHEEEBBEIZFER
(Continued) R (E)
The Group recognises an impairment REBERERERAB N
gain or loss in profit or loss for all LA ZRERZNE

financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of
trade receivables, loan receivables and
financial guarantee contracts where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is not reclassified to
profit or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

4.5.2 Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are
measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and

° the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Information (Continued)

4.6

4.7

4.8

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Properties for sale are classified as current assets.
Except for the leasehold land element which is
measured at cost model in accordance with the
accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties for
sale are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on a specific identification
basis including allocation of the related development
expenditure incurred and where appropriate, borrowing
costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for the properties less estimated
cost to completion and costs necessary to make the
sales. Costs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and
non-incremental costs which the Group must incur to
make the sale.

Revenue from contracts with customers
Information about the Group’s accounting policies
relating to contracts with customers is provided in notes
6 and 24.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are
unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of income tax
expense in profit or loss.
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4.8 Taxation (Continued) 4.8 BIEE)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences at
the reporting date between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and their corresponding tax bases used in
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit and at the time of the transaction does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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4.8 Taxation (Continued) 4.8 BIEE)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e.
based on the expected manner as to how the properties
will be recovered).

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable
to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a
net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets
over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease
liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.
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4. Summary of Material Accounting Policy 4. EXESHBRREMBMEGE)

Information (Continued)
4.8 Taxation (Continued) 4.8 BIEE)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,
(@  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set

off the recognised amounts; and

(b)  intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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4. Summary of Material Accounting Policy

Information (Continued)
4.9 Employee Benefits

(i)

(ii)

Defined contribution retirement plans
Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions. The
Group’s obligations under these plans are limited
to the fixed percentage contributions payable.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such
as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another
HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the
cost of an asset.

4.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key

Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting
Policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

(i)  Deferred tax arising from fair value changes in

investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties, the Directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted.

5.
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5. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(i)  Estimated fair value of investment properties and
revalued amount of buildings
The Group’s investment properties are stated at fair
value and buildings are stated at revalued amount based
on the valuation performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer. In determining the fair value/revalued
amount, the valuer has based its valuation on income
capitalisation approach or direct comparison or the
residual method, as appropriate for respective
investment properties, and valuation on net replacement
cost method for buildings, which involves certain
estimates, including comparable market transactions,
appropriate capitalisation rates and reversionary rental
value, estimated gross development value, estimated
cost of development and allowance of profit that duly
reflected developer’s risk associated with the
development, as appropriate. The determination of the
fair value involves certain assumptions of market
conditions which are set out in notes 17 and 18. In
relying on the valuation report, management has
exercised their judgement and is satisfied that the
methods of valuation adopted are appropriate for the
relevant property and reflective of current market
conditions. Changes to these assumptions, including the
potential risk of any market violation, policy, social
changes or other unexpected incidents as a result of
change in macroeconomic environment, or other
unexpected incidents would result in changes in the fair
values of the Group’s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. As at 31 December
2024, the fair value of Group’s investment properties and
revalued amount of buildings were approximately
HK$15,266,445,000 and HK$31,978,000 (2023:
HK$18,171,015,000 and HK$32,978,000), respectively.

5.
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Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

(Continued)

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

(ii)  Net realisable values of properties for sale
Management determines the net realisable values of
properties for sale based on the Group’s assessment of
the selling price ultimately expected to be realised less all
estimated cost to completion and cost necessary to
make the sale. The estimated selling price of such
properties are determined by the management with
reference to prevailing market data such as most recent
sale transactions of similar properties or market valuation
reports available from independent qualified professional
valuers. Such valuations are made based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties and
might materially differ from the actual result. In making
the judgement, reasonable consideration has been given
to the underlying assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the reporting date. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market data
and actual transactions in the market. As at 31
December 2024, the carrying amount of properties for
sale was approximately HK$1,017,723,000 (2023:
approximately HK$1,381,903,000).

5.
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6. Revenue 6. Wik
An analysis of the Group’s revenue from its principal activities AEB ZEFEBEB oW R EMBA DT
and other income is as follows: N
i)  Disaggregation of Revenue and Reconciliation i) Wik [E R R 5 R U s EE AR

to Segment Revenue

2024 2023
—E-mE T =5
HK$°000 HK$’000
T IT BT
Revenue from contracts with REFEMBRE
customers under HKFRS 15 ERHIE157KBER
ezl
Property development* YMIEER
— Sales of completed properties —EBEKTEME
for sale iHE 875,054 22,729
Building management and EFEEREMRE
other services*
— Property repairs and maintenance — MEHBERRE
service income Rz 7 W A 5,191 5,876
— Building management service — BFERRS
income WA 18,108 15,603
Revenue from contracts with customers 18 15 & i B1 75 37 &5 % 8|
under HKFRS 15 FISHRRABEF AL
pal & 898,353 44,208
Property leasing* MEHE
— Rental and signage rental income —HeRESEM
HEWA 331,379 351,684
Total revenue g i 1,229,732 395,892
* The segment names are defined in the section “Segment DEEBERRWABIHEER]—

information” in note 8.

-
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6. Revenue (Continued)
Disaggregation of Revenue and Reconciliation
to Segment Revenue (Continued)

i)

W &5 (48)

) WRERRSEKEHRE

Building
management
Property and other
development services
For the year ended 31 December 2024 segment segment
MEEER
BE-S-NE+-A=+-HLEE MEBRRSE HEBRENE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Geographical markets HE TS
The Mainland China* A B A 9,596 22 9,618
Hong Kong BB 865,458 23,277 888,735
875,054 23,299 898,353
Timing of recognition T 22 B
A point in time e 875,054 - 875,054
Over time BEES R HERE = 23,299 23,299
875,054 23,299 898,353

For reporting purpose, the Mainland China excludes Hong

* FREWME - PEABTIEEEE

Kong, Taiwan and Macau AN R
Building
management
Property and other
development services
For the year ended 31 December 2023 segment segment Total
BFEER
HE-_Z-_=—F#+-_A=+—HALEFE MEERRSE HORBOE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
Geographical markets E 5
The Mainland China* o B A 22,729 15 22,744
Hong Kong aBE - 21,464 21,464
22,729 21,479 44,208
Timing of recognition B 32 B
A point in time $ R R 26 22,729 — 22,729
Over time I B P HE TS — 21,479 21,479
22,729 21,479 44,208

For reporting purpose, the Mainland China excludes Hong * BERNS  TEAMTIBEES -
Kong, Taiwan and Macau B RIEP
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6. Revenue (Continued)

i)

Performance Obligation for Contract with
Customers and Revenue Recognition Policies
Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the
respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the customers which is a point in time when
customers have the ability to direct the use of the
properties and obtain substantially all benefits of the
properties. Deposits received from customers prior to
meeting the aforementioned revenue recognition criteria
are regarded as the contract liabilities and included in
current liabilities as pre-sale proceeds received on sales
of properties in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group considers that the pre-sale proceeds
received on sales of properties do not contain significant
financing component as the contracts where the period
between payment and transfer of the associated
properties is less than one year, the Group applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price
for any significant financing component.

For the contracts that contain the performance
obligation of providing financial guarantee to banks with
respect to mortgage loans procured by the purchasers
of the Group’s properties in the contracts on sales of
properties, the Group should allocate the transaction
price to the performance obligations between the sales
of properties and provision of financial guarantee on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. The Group
considers that the impact in the allocation of provision of
financial guarantee on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis is insignificant during the years ended 31
December 2024 and 2023 and thus all the revenue
recognised from the contracts with customers on sales
of properties is then allocated to the revenue from sales
of completed properties for sale.

6. W
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6. Revenue (Continued)

i)

iii)

Performance Obligation for Contract with
Customers and Revenue Recognition Policies
(Continued)

Property repairs and maintenance service income/
Building management service income

Revenue from provision of property repairs and
maintenance service and provision of building
management service are recognised over time as the
customers simultaneously receive and consume the
benefits provided by the Group when the Group renders
the service.

Transaction Price Allocated to the Remaining
Performance Obligation for Contracts with
Customers

Contracts for building management services are typically
have one to five years non-cancellable term under which
the Group bills a fixed amount for a month. The Group
elected to apply the practical expedient by recognising
revenue in the amount to which the Group has right to
invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

All other contracts with customers are for periods of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts
is not disclosed.

6. W
ii)

iiii)

= (48)
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7. Other Income, Gains and Losses 7. HWA WEREIE
2024 2023
—E-NE —F-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BET T
7a. Other income 7a. Hibdg A
Interest income from financial assets EAFEFAEREZ
at FVTPL WM& E 2 A BWA 957 2,286
Dividend income from financial BAFEFAEM
assets at FVOCI FEBAZHEEE
95N ON 5,324 —
Interest income from loan FEWCE R B A
receivables 9,022 596
Other interest income E AR E A 49,458 54,556
Government grants (note 1) IR 8 B (PR 31D - 6,945
Forfeiture of deposits (note 2) B ETE (H7E2) - 364,457
Miscellaneous income HMIFUW A 9,072 9,784
73,833 438,624
7b. Other gains and losses 7b. Hib iz R E51E
Impairment loss on trade B 5 W IE R EEE
receivables, net of reversal (FOBR B @) (1,729) (659)
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - WEREE
and equipment &5 18 (383) (77)
2,112) (736)
Total other income, Hth A s R
gains and losses B8 4828 71,721 437,888
Notes: N
1. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised 1. RBEZZT-_=F+-A=+—HILFE "
government grants of approximately HK$6,945,000 (2024: HK$Nil) REBSEBBRMAREOMRI 5 815
in respect of Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong 2 BT 47 B #9 78 %56,945,0007T (ZZ = 1Y
Kong government. There were no unfulfilled conditions attached to FBETT) ZEWPEMHIREHE
these grants. ERK
2. The amounts represents forfeiture of deposits upon the termination 2. ZECHERE-S-_=F+=A=1+—H
of the sale and purchase agreement on sale of subsidiaries during EFERIEPENBARIZEE KT

the year ended 31 December 2023 (see note 17 for detalls). W ziTe GFEBEHE2HEME17) -
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Segment Information

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors of the Company
for their decisions about resource allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the performance
of those components. The business components in the internal
financial information reported to the executive directors of the
Company are determined following the Group’s major business
lines.

The Group has identified the following operating and
reportable segments:

Property : Development of residential,
development commercial and industrial
properties

Property leasing Property rental including signage
rental and rental under mini-

storage operation

Building : Provision of building
management management, property repairs
and other and maintenance services
services

Each of these operating and reportable segments is managed
separately as each of the business lines requires different
resources as well as operating approaches.

Also, the Group engaged in properties assembly and sales of
properties business. There is no project under property
assembly business in both years. Thus, this is not constitute a
reportable segment during both years.
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8. Segment Information (Continued) 8. EEHNGE)
These operating and reportable segments are monitored and hWEEERAERD B EERIREK ZME
strategic decisions are made on the basis of segment BERS LGSR -

operating results.

Segment Revenue and Results SHEWERES
Building management and
Property development Property leasing other services Segment total
HEER HEHE BFEEREMRE FEEH

2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

- f- Al T —F febalifl T = ekl T —F ekl T =
HK$°000 HK$'000 [GLE) HK$'000 GG HK$'000 GG HK$'000
BETT EEOEES AT BRI G TT EEERR AT kR

Revenue 1§+
External customers IREF 875,054 22,729 331,379 351,684 23,299 21479 1,229,732 395,892
Inter-segments (note) &R () - - 233 48 1,944 2,832 2,177 2,880
Segment revenue S ERE 875,054 22,729 331,612 351,782 25,243 24311 1,231,909 398,772
Segment profits SERH 291,062 7419 269,609 284,004 28,778 25,778 589,449 317,201
Certain other income, gains ETFEMBA - s

and losses REE 37,207 406,399
Certain administrative expenses & TTHER (59,462) (61,296)
Gain on disposal of asubsidiary K&K BAR 2

o 1,969 11,440

Net fair value loss on REMELATFEBE

investment properties bkl (2,900,959)  (1,212,858)
Finance costs BEKAR (75,868) (84,579)
Loss before income tax expense B AT 15 5 4 2 Al &5 18 (2,407,664)  (623,693)

=

Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at mutual agreed terms. 5 B MEEEREERE 2GRNk -

The operating and reportable segment results exclude finance BBEBRAERSPEXETBIERERA
costs, net fair value loss on investment properties, gain on KEMEANFEEBEFE HE—HHEB
disposal of a subsidiary, certain other income, gains and NEZWE - BTEMIA - = REE -
losses, certain administrative expenses and income tax AETITREARMASEHMAS -

expense.




ANNUAL REPORT 2024 “#k

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B S A B

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE=[J#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

8. HEEAMGE)
SHEERAR

8. Segment Information (Continued)
Segment Assets and Liabilities

Building management and

Property development Property leasing other services Segment total
YEER YEHE BFEBRRAMBRE SEEH
2024 2023 2024 2024 2023 2024 2023
bl bl T -4 Eebdalifl T -F Eebleibl T -F Eebcdelifl T -F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BETT BETR BETT LA BETT LA BETT
Segment assets NEBE 1,430,883 1702323  15494,105 18,372,825 31,800 32676 16,956,788 20,107,824
Certain property, plant and ETNE BERRE
equipment 26,278 4722
Financial assets at FVTOCI BATEFA
HEt2EKA
LHBEE 39,938 43,006
Short-term bank deposits REMBIER 827,153 635,200
Certain cash and cash equivalents % TH & RBEEZED 124,982 209,481
Total assets BELE 17,975,139 21,000,233
Segment liabilities PEER 345,600 474,612 203,973 208,540 6,035 7,298 555,608 690,450
Certain other payables ETHMEMNTE 80,812 81,534
Borrowings fBHE 1,359,858 1,516,799
Deposit received for disposal of ~ HENE 2
properties Bz 793 305
Provision for income tax FiEH&HE 165,456 121,123
Deferred tax liabilities ERREAE 135,871 130,160
Total liabilties BELE 2,298,398 2,540,371

NHREEREMEEE BTREETY
X BELRE BRAOVESAEMCEZE
WAZHBEE BRPRTHEALETRH
ERREEFEEY -

Segment assets include all assets other than certain property,
plant and equipment, financial assets at FVTOCI, short-term
bank deposits and certain cash and cash equivalents.

NHEABREMERE BETEEETH
ENERIR - PRSHEHE - BEHRAR/E
HEMEZERZREREE -

Segment liabilities comprise all liabilities other than certain
other payables, provision for income tax, deferred tax liabilities,
deposit received for disposal of properties and borrowings.
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8. HEEANGE)

Segment Information (Continued)
Other Segment Information

Building management and

Property development Property leasing other services Segment total Unallocated Total
NERR LESN BFERREMRE HE@H B At
2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023
-E-oCE ok St = - Skt 3 ZZ-ZF ekdelifl —T-ocF k- Skt
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR BETT BB AR BETT BB
Amounts included in the AR E A E
measure of segment profit: ZRE:
Interest income from financial & ATFEAERZ
assets at FVTPL BBAEZFIBIMA 957 2,286 - - - - 957 2,286 - - 957 2,286
Interest income from loan ERERFEHA
receivables 9,022 596 - - - - 9,022 596 - - 9,022 596
Other interest income E4EY 0N 1,911 2,644 6,252 25 54 56 8,704 2725 40,754 51,831 49,458 54,556
Depreciation of ight-of-use assets  BEAERE (453) (460) (76) (2,789) - - (529) (3,248) = - (529) (3.248)
Depreciation of other property, ~ Eft#1% - BER
plant and equipment REHE (49) (82 (2,961) (3,845) (80) (80) (3,090) (3957) - - (3,090) (3.957)
(Impairment loss) reversal of BHENHEL
impairment loss on (REER)HE
trade receivables, net BRREEE - - (1,729) 58 - - (1,729) 58 - - (1,729) 58
Amounts included in the AN EEENE
measure of segment assets: 25 :
Additions to non-current segment £ FJ R
assets during the year FRBAEEE 636 35,18 1,966 147,966 - - 2,602 183,079 - - 2,602 183,079
Geographical Information EE

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its non-
current assets (other than financial instruments) are divided into
the following geographical areas:

AEBEZIREP s M EFRBE E (B
BITERBKIN oM ATH R

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets

IREBRI S ERHEE
2024 2023 2024 2023
—E-lE = -l -l T — A
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T T BT T BT T BT T

Principal markets EEWHH

— Hong Kong (domicile) — &8 GEMi) 1,220,114 373148 15,366,555 18,273,432
— the Mainland China — B A 3 9,618 22,744 12,251 12,297
1,229,732 395,892 15,378,806 18,285,729
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Geographical Information (Continued)

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the goods/services were delivered/rendered.
The geographical location of non-current assets is based on

the physical location of the assets.

Information about Major Customer

Revenue from customer of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as

follows:

TEREHE)

= & ¥ (8)
EEZABEDERRN REER,/
B2 IHET - FRDEEZ RN
T ERAE 2 BEFRIE -

FHREEERZEH
AT 4B A 42 2 2 5 0 A 52 B 5 R R4810%
N EFELFTEE

Property leasing (Note)

— Customer A

LA
— BPA

Year ended

BEUTHHILEE
31/12/2024 31/12/2023
—E-E —E-=F
+=—HA=+—H +=-—A=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
N/AZ iE F N/AT i F3

Note: Revenue from Customer A did not exceed 10% of total revenue
during the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2024.

Finance Costs

Wik RBEE=ZT-_=FN_ZT-_mF+=A=1
—BLEEE  KAFEFAZI D B & B
i@ 2 210% ©

g0 %: S

2024 2023
—E-MmE —E-=

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BET T

Interest expenses on:
Borrowings
Lease liabilities

AT EBEZME
&
HERIE

74,355 82,873
1,513 1,706

75,868 84,579
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10.

Loss before Income Tax Expense
Loss before income tax expense is arrived at after charging/

10. BRFT 1R BIBAZAIES 18

BRATEHREAERENEGIA) T

(crediting): =
2024 2023
—E-ME TEC=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETT BT T
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B & 3,393 3,236
Cost of completed properties for sale BRARIZEEZXNFE
recognised as expenses SEID PN 563,502 13,374
Depreciation of right-of-use assets & AEEESE (MiE18)
(note 18) 529 3,248
Depreciation of other property, plant EywE BERZETE
and equipment (note 18) (BF7E18) 3,090 3,957
Employee compensation expense EERMAL (RIEESHE
(including Directors’ remuneration 52 58 B AR AS) (P 5E12)
and defined contribution cost)
(note 12) 160,552 160,542
Rentals in respect of short-term leases  RHHEREEEMLE 2
and low-valued leases He 358 463
Revaluation deficit on property, W BENMREEMR
plant and equipment &5 18 120 120
Gross rental income from investment HEWERS W AR
properties (331,379) (351,684)
Less: Direct operating expense arising & E4AH S WA 2R E
from investment properties that MERMEEZERE
generated rental income med 19,592 16,952
Less: Direct operating expense arising ~ J&: KREA B WA 2 K&
from investment properties that MEMEE 2 EE
did not generate rental income S 864 810
(310,923) (333,922)
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11. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 1. EEREREEEZHNE
Emoluments
(a) Directors’ Emoluments (@) EEBM£
The emoluments paid or payable to the Directors were BENENEEMNSOT:
as follows:
Retirement
Performance benefits
Salaries and related scheme
Fee allowances bonuses contributions Total
BHREFH
we  HEREN REARTL IR @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT  BETR

Year ended 31 December 2024 BE-T-mf
+-A=+-BLEE
Executive directors BTES
Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace BE%t 120 4,056 6,089 18 10,283
Ms. Chan Wai Ling REZ/E 120 4,320 5,810 18 10,268
Mr. Chan Hing Tat BB 120 3,996 5,657 18 9,791
Mr. Tse Wai Hang HEETE 120 2,100 525 18 2,763
Independent non-executive directors BURTES
Mr. Chan Kai Nang BREE L E 200 - - - 200
Mr. Pao Ping Wing B EE 200 - - - 200
Mr. Young Chun Man, Kenneth Xk E 180 - - - 180
1,060 14,472 18,081 72 33,685
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-Z-=F
+ZAZ+-BILEE
Executive directors WTES
Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace Be¥kiat 120 4,056 7,638 18 11,832
Ms. Chan Wai Ling REZ /A 120 4,320 7,359 18 1,817
Mr. Chan Hing Tat BEELE 120 3,996 7,206 18 11,340
Mr. Tse Wai Hang HEHEE 120 2,100 175 18 2,413
Independent non-executive directors BUFRNTES
Mr. Chan Kai Nang R B AE S 200 - - - 200
Mr. Pao Ping Wing BREEE 200 - - - 200
Mr. Ng Chi Keung (passed away on REREE(R-T=_=F
8 March 2023) ZANBEH) 37 - - - 37
Mr. Young Chun Man, Kenneth (appointed on 5 XA (MR- E==4F
16 June 2023) NATARBEZE) 98 - - - 98

1,015 14,472 22,378 72 37,937
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11. Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Emoluments (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Directors’ Emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as Directors.

Certain executive Directors are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined in accordance with the
performance of the Group.

There is no chief executive appointed for both years.

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2023: nil).

Five Highest Paid Individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included three (2023: four)
Directors, whose emoluments are reflected in the

1.

ESREREEEZMNE(E)

(@)

(b)

EEWNE (@
EIMTESTHE IR EEFEEAR
A MA KRB ERZ RIS - £
BUFATESTHME IR MEFEL
BEMXA o

ETHTESEREMEEBRAE
BRINEE ZIEL

o {E 4 39 B R AT TTERAREL -

iﬁq*ﬁiﬁfﬂTiﬁV‘\%%—Ifﬁt%@

eRFEEHREMHFH (T ==
&)

AfiREHAL

AFEE AEEBRANZSHALBIE
(B =F O EEHE
ZHE R Bt 2 5T o FREH

analysis presented above. The emoluments paid to the MO (ZEZ=F: — ()AL Z&
remaining two (2023: one) individual during the year are s
as follows:
2024 2023
—E-lmE —E=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BET T
Basic salaries, bonuses and other EARFHS - TE4L R
benefits Ha 4,956 3,996
Performance-related bonuses FIRMERIEAL 5,514 999
Pension costs — defined RRE AR — TR
contribution plan FT &l 18 —
10,488 4,995
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11. Directors’ and Senior Management’s 1. EEREREEBZME (E)
Emoluments (Continued)
(b) Five Highest Paid Individuals (Continued) (b) EfimE#HAL(E)
The emoluments of the remaining two (2023: one) Egp (2 =F —u)AL 2z
individuals fell within the following bands: B 5 AR Bl

Number of individuals

AE
2024 2023
—E-UE —ET-=
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 75 #4,500,0017T —
75 5,000,000 1 1
HK$5,000,001 — HK$5,500,000 78 #5,000,0017T —
7 #55,500,0007T 1 _
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors (B R _NER T =F+H
or any of five highest paid individuals as an inducement =t+—HAIEMEFESF  AEEH
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for ERESIAUERFALTEAN
loss of office and no Director waived or agreed to waive TR - ERREEMAXREER
any emoluments during each of the two years ended 31 RMAREER 2 R L BH 2w
December 2024 and 2023. B BEfEEEHEXAERREM

e -
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12. Employee Benefit Expense (Including 12. EERIHAZ(BEESENE)

Directors’ Emoluments)

2024 2023
—ET-@mE TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
T IT BT I

Salaries, employee benefits and wages & - EEREF &

(including Directors’ remuneration) TEBREEETHS)
and bonus MIELT 154,331 154,104
Pension costs — defined contribution BRE R A—EEERE
plans (note) (M 3E) 3,890 4,204
Staff welfare BTEH 2,331 2,234
160,552 160,542
Note: P 5

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit plan under
the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong,
for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group incurred employee
compensation expenses of HK$50,360,000 (2023: HK$46,071,000)
included in the above employee benefit expense, which is employed on
behalf of the third parties to whom these subsidiaries provided building
management services. Such expenses are set-off with other income from
building management services received by the Group.

AEBEFERERHNUEAES (RES DB

Pl REMBEEERSNBEEHEZEEREE

{ RERKBENFE - KR DREEEATHEZ
DEETE

WHRAEEZ P RBASHE - ZEMBLRA
BEFHeKAZETAD AT REKRESTE

B
N

AEBNPEAMEEZHERRZEEAZEE
#

REBEEZ-Z-_NF+_A=+—HLFER £&
EREELtiEERAMAIACZEETHAIE
#50,360,0007T (= Z = =4 : & %46,071,0007T)
ABRZEMBARIME=FREEFEEREHER
AXNNEEFIMAS - MZzSRA RS E U
WEFEERBAEHMU AT -
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13. Income Tax Expense 13. FAIfSHAX
2024 2023
—E-E —E-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BANEH
Tax for the year (note (a)) REEFIA M @) 60,917 14,375
Mainland China Enterprise Income Tax R R 2RISR
(‘BT (EEMERD
Tax for the year (note (b)) N E F IR (M 5F (o) 167 1,620
Mainland China Land Appreciation Tax A7 B A 1h £ 30 38 (B ¢
(“LAT”) (note (c)) (Tt 38 E B ) (P 7% () 17,654 1,601
Over-provision in prior years BEFERBEEG (542) 291)
Deferred tax charge (note 27) iR E B 1 2 1 (BT 5E27) 5,711 5,505
83,907 22,810
Notes: B 5
@) Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million @) EFEBHRAGT  AEBREEEREBE
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and CHEBRLAMEBEZFEHEERS.25% - MR
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of BHEE THRERZ16.5%HE-H o T
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates ARFE MRS R 2 SEEE 2 FEE
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%. # 1B 157216.5% 2 B — B R o
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated MEFE 2ERBFEGB DRGERTR
assessable profit for both years. FIIZ T E16.5%:T & -
(o) For the year ended 31 December 2024, all of the Group’s Mainland (o) HE_ZT_HMF+_A=1+—HBIEFE"
China subsidiaries were subject to Mainland China EIT rate of 25% AEBFA PN M E A RR25% (ZF
(2023: 25%). ZoF 5% 2 RN PE R

FrigH -
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13.

Income Tax Expense (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

13. Fﬁﬁrﬁf‘aﬁi(nﬁ

()

© Under the Provisional Regulations of LAT ({#r%E A R £ ANE 1 3% © BER—NANANF-—A—BEBZ(PEA
& B & 17 {& 7)) effective on 1 January 1994, and the Detailed RAEMBE T EEBRETHEOIDRR—AN
Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the FF—AZ+EREB (P EARKEANER
Mainland China on LAT ({1 A R M E £ b 18 @R E TR0 = THIEERETGRAERER) BZFF
e 40 81l ) effective from 27 January 1995, all income from the sale WE—F—Rie - EhER SR
or transfer of state-owned land use rights, buildings and their AL ERE - E?&%&EW%%Z}%%W
attached facilities in the Mainland China is subject to LAT at A BRI EEE30% 260% 2 2 #E B R
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation M ER o WMEENLEMEMS %J\
value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible EREAMB S - SFEEMEPEAM D
expenditures including borrowing costs and property development EMEMGUREZEERNARMERES
expenditures in relation to the gains arising from sales of properties oo T BIEEFE B EERBATINM
in the Mainland China effective from 1 January 2004, with an THEAE20% - TRIEEEE 2 EHER
exemption provided for property sales of ordinary residential R L HIEER -
properties (& i@ 1% % (& =) if their appreciation values do not
exceed 20% of the sum of the total deductible items.
Reconciliation between income tax expense and loss before 1570 59 2 N B P 1S 4 5 <2 AT s 18 4% i R
income tax expense at applicable tax rates is as follows: %R $ FTEZHERMT
2024 2023
—E-ME — ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
Loss before income tax expense MBI aER (2,407,664) (623,693)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate LEEFEHH %16.5%
of 16.5% FTE IR (397,265) (102,909)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T ?% Mz BRI a/ 2 480,670 204,390
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERM WA B E (11,010) (86,554)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ~ ARIER 2 T 18 518 2 7%
TE 4,713 5,439
Utilisation of previously unrecognised FABEARER B IERE
tax losses (130) 2,211)
Over-provision in prior years BAEFEBHEER (542) (291)
Provision for LAT for the year FN L IBE R 17,654 1,601
Tax effect of LAT deductible for PR A TSR 2 A ?D
Mainland China EIT IR ET B R (2,913) (264)
Effect of different tax rates of ves ﬁ AR R 2 E 2 KB
subsidiaries operating in other RAIZ PR E s &
jurisdictions 57 613
Others Hith (7,327) 2,996
Income tax expense FEHEX 83,907 22,810
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14. Other Comprehensive (Expense)/Income 14. FREMB2ETFEZ) KA 0

For The Year, Net of Income Tax BrATR &

The amount of tax relating to each component of other FHEFREMEZEFEZ) MASBIZ
comprehensive (expense)/income can be summarised as MBS T

follows:

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=HF

Before tax Tax Net of tax Before tax Tax Net of tax
B Bt A BIE BBz T Al IR B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR EETR EETR BT BT T BT T

Items that will not be reclassified to X 18 A # T & & #f

profit or loss: DHEEE
Change in fair value of financial & A FEFFAEME
assets at FVTOCI HBAZHBEE
CATEES (3,383) = (3,383) 3,036 . 3,036
Item that may be reclassified W TEEREAJEER
subsequently to profit or loss: DHEEE
Exchange loss on translation of 2 &GN ER 2
foreign operations fE &8 (3,692) - (3,692) (15,643) — (15,643)

Other comprehensive expense ERH B2 ERX
for the year, net of NRFEHE
income tax (7,075) - (7,075) (12,607) - (12,607)
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15. Dividend 15. I 2
(a) Dividend Attributable to the Year (@) TEEZIRE
2024 2023
—E-ME T
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Proposed final dividend BEANAREER
(2023 HK$0.20) per share —T =4 BH0.207T) - 56,662
Proposed special dividend BEFIREER
(2023: HK$0.80) per share (ZFTZ=%:&%0.807T) - 226,647
- 283,309
No Final dividend (2023: A final dividend HK$0.20 per EENR_T_RAF=A-_+HTER
share and special dividend of HK$0.80 per share) for the MR-ZZE-_RAFRA-T-ZHRZIR
year to shareholders whose names appear on the &% A2 B SOR AT AN F E R AR B
register of members on 22 May 2025 was proposed by ZEZ=F KRR BERRER0.20
the Directors on 20 March 2025. TTREFRIR EE R EE0.807T) °
The final and special dividends proposed after the RMEABEEZ cRARRERIRE
reporting date have not been recognised as a liability at WHRAREAMERLAE -
the reporting date.
(b) Dividend Attributable to the Previous (b) BEMBEEZRE NRERE
Financial Year, Approved and Paid during the Bt &% A
Year
2024 2023
—E-ME T o=
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRI BT
Final dividend in respect of the BEMBFEE 2 RERE
previous financial year of HK$0.20 fi% 78 #80.207T
per share (2023: final dividend of T =FRERE
HK$0.20 per share) TR B 0.207T) 56,662 56,662
Special dividend in respect of the BEFBFE 2R E
previous financial year of BB 0.807T
HK$0.80 per share (2023: Nil) —T-=F ) 226,647 _

283,309 56,662
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16. Loss per Share

17.

The calculation of the loss per share of the Company is based
on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
of HK$2,491,851,000 (2023: HK$646,511,000) and the number
of ordinary shares of 283,308,635 (2023: 283,308,635) in issue
during the year.

No diluted loss per share for years ended 31 December 2024
and 2023 was presented as there were no potential ordinary
shares in issue during the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023.

16. BRREE
RNAR R EBNG %EA$’ATT§EEA
JE 45 G N JE5 18 78 #52,491,851,000 T (ZE =
=4 B1646,511,00070) R ERN D B ITYE
B A # B283,308,635M (= T — = F:
283,308,635/%) °

HREBE-_T_NER-_FT_=F+-A=
T-HALFEAYEBETEELRE A
Y ESIBE-_FT_MFR-_F_=
T A=+—BULFEzSREFESE -

Investment Properties 17. &YX
2024 2023
—EBCME T o=
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BETT BT T
Fair Value AFEE
As at 1 January ®n—A—H 18,171,015 19,374,605
Additions R
— Purchase of units —BEEN 21,748 135,024
— Sublease of leased properties —HHEMHEME 27,582 12,942
— Construction costs — EERA AR 3,747 35,113
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) i & BT A 7] (M #E37) - (23,990)
Disposal of investment properties HEREYE (48,947) (149,821)
Classified as assets held for sale DEREFECEE (7,741) —
Net fair value loss on investment properties &Y ¥ N FEEIEFE (2,900,959) (1,212,858)
As at 31 December W+=—H=+—H 15,266,445 18,171,015
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17. Investment Properties (Continued) 17. HEME(E)

The Group leases out commercial buildings, industrial
buildings and retail stores under operating leases with rentals
payable monthly. The Group also subleases its leased
properties under operating leases with rentals payable
monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
six years, with unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond initial
period held by lessees only. Majority of the lease contracts
contain market review clauses in the event the lessee exercises
the option to extend. The leases of retail stores contain
minimum annual lease payments that are fixed over the lease
term and lease payment of certain leases of retail stores are
determined by the higher of 10% to 25% of the sale and the
monthly lease payment.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of
the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the
respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or
lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease
term.

All of the Group’s investment properties are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at 31
December 2024 and 2023 by an independent qualified
professional valuer, Cushman & Wakefield Limited (“C&W”), on
market value basis which conforms with The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standard:

° The completed investment properties (whole block of
commercial building) are revalued by adopting income
capitalisation method, which involves certain estimates,
including capitalisation rates and reversionary rental
value;

AEERBELEHELERESZT IX
REMZERH HeABAXN K&
EBAREBEEEMESHAEHEEYR  He
AEAXN ZEHEE—RNBEAR—
EXNF REAHAGERESTERVIAE
HRERHEE - KEHBEHEEH SR
R BRFEABEATELERE  TEEHH
MAEEE N HESNEEN&IESFH
BN MEEEMHNE THENHEHEN
AANASHEF10% £ 25% L FAHERNHTH
EhHMRSEETE -

A S T R T E S SN
g FERMARESNEREREE Y
WL EEHE - REROLTRATGE
ERRE, RABAREBERBBEZ
WE 7R -

AEBREREMEEURNTFERAE
WD BARFFARKENE -

AEBZREMERBIABREXMGE
FEERITARAR(HBERITINR_2=
MER—TE-_=F+-_A=+—HKREEE
A EREE T EENRTzmEELELET
Efh:

o  CEKEREME(EEFEEZT)RA
WABKOEER  EFFREREE
e R RERHEEZE THE
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17. Investment Properties (Continued)

° The completed investment properties (individual units
(including commercial, industrial and residential
properties) or ground floor retail properties) are revalued
based on direct comparison method, by reference to
market transactions of comparable properties;

° The leased properties under sublease arrangement by
the Group, are revalued based on income capitalisation
method which involves certain estimates, including
capitalisation rates and reversionary rental value; and

° Investment properties under re-development were
revalued on the re-development basis by adopting the
residual method. The value is based on the re-
development potential of the properties as if these
properties will be developed and completed in
accordance with the existing redevelopment proposal at
the date of valuation and is determined by deducting the
estimated total cost of the development, including costs
of construction, professional fee, finance costs,
associated costs and an allowance of profit that duly
reflected developer’s risk associated with the
development from the gross development value.

In determining the fair values of the investment properties, the
Group engages an independent qualified professional valuer to
perform the valuation. The management works with the
independent qualified professional valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for level 3 fair
value measurement. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the investment properties, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the Directors.

In relying on these valuations, the management has exercised
judgement and is satisfied that the methods of valuation
adopted are appropriate and reflective of the current market
conditions.

17. IREWMEER)

EERREMEENEML(BER
X IEXELREEVRIX B TTEY
R)RBREERLERER  Eh2E
ALEMEZTSERS

AEEESELH T 2REMETIR
WABKOEER  EFFRERE
Motk RREHBE2E THE R

ERZREVERARNGEIRERZE
EEM - BEUAMEEZBENIRE
& FEMZEMERERRIZRE
BERSTRBERIER K - &R
ERBEMRAETERERKT (B
RERA  EXER - BEKA M
BRANZSRRERAEZRIAR
E B8 2 R B 0 g B B4 T BB OE ©

EBEEREMEZATER ~NEEZE
BYARERBEXMGEMETHE EEE
BPTABREXMEMEE  BFEIRR
FEFERLEEGBERMREUER - f#
BREMELATELREREY  AMES
BEKBRA -

KRR FHER -

B ECEREHE

WAEMATRM 2 EETZBEE L RRIE
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(whole block of commercial
building)

BREKEANE
(BEHXET)

(2023: 12,897,500)

10,850,600
(2023%: 12,897,500)

method

WABRE

EREE

Capitalisation rate

BRfHE
Completed investment properties 1,713,955 Direct comparison Price per square foot
(individual units (including (2023: 2,012,975) method
commercial, industrial and
residential properties) or ground
floor retail properties)
BERRENE 1,713,955 EELEE BIHRER

(BRI Ef(BEEE TXR

EENHIHTERENR)

(2023% : 2,012,975

(2023: HK$21 - HK$53)
per month per square foot for
upper-level office/restaurants
premises;
HK$65 - HK$488
(2023: HK$65 - HK$582)
per month per square foot for
ground floor shops
BEHRAE BESH
FHREA
BB E B BT
(2023% : B#ATE
FBEEBITT) ¢
wREEFHAREA
65T 2 1E488TT
(2023% : B M6 L E
B #5827T)
2.75% - 3.5%
(2023: 2.38% - 3.5%)

2.75% £3.5%
(2023%: 2.38%£3.5%)

HK$7,000 - HK$85,000

(2023: HK$7,900 - HK$103,000)

per square foot for commercial
properties
HK$2,400 - HK$10,100
(2023: HK$2,800 - HK$10,900)
per square foot for industrial
properties
HK$4,700 - HK$21,000
(2023: HK$5,300 - HK$24,000)
per square foot for residential
properties
BENEETAR
BE7000T E
7 #85,0007T
(2023% : A #7900 &
7 #103,0007T)
TENEGTHREL2400TE
##10,1007T
(20235 : 512,800 F
7 #10,9007T)
FENEBTHRER4T00TE
7 #21,0007T
(2023% : 515,300 F
7 #24,0007C)

17. Investment Properties (Continued) 17. HEME(E)

The carrying amount of the Group’s investment properties is a REBREMFE ZEEBEREIRATE
level 3 fair value measurement. There were no investment FFE o RMEFERN  UEKREMEEA
property transfers into or out of level 3 fair value measurement S EHEIRATETE
during both years.
The following table gives information about how the fair values TR BEANREEZSRENEZR
of these investment properties are determined (in particular, FEGERZFE A ER T RER) 2
the valuation techniques and inputs used). BH o

Investment properties Interrelationship between

held by the Group in significant unobservable

the consolidated statement Fair value as at Valuation Significant Range of significant input(s) and fair value

of financial position 31 December 2024 technique(s) unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs measurement

AREARGEMBRAR R-F-mE TEFTHEYRA

FHAZRENE +§HE+—EIZ'ASFE HERH FEFTHEYR TETTRRMB2EE AFEFEZERRG

HK$'000
BBTT
Completed investment
properties
EERRENE
Completed investment properties 10,850,600 Income capitalisation Reversionary rental value HK$19 - HK$46 The higher the reversionary

rental value, the higher the
fair value

The higher the capitalisation
rate, the lower the fair
value

B EEs ATE
HE

The higher the price per
square foot, the higher the
fair value

STARARLE -
ATELR
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- - b ==
Investment Properties (Continued) 17. HEYEE)
Investment properties Interrelationship between
held by the Group in significant unobservable
the consolidated statement Fair value as at Valuation Significant Range of significant input(s) and fair value
of financial position 31 December 2024 technique(s) unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs measurement
FEARGAMBRAR RZB-ME TERTHRHRE
FazREANE +§HE+—EIZ’A$E AR FETUHRRYR FETTHRRYRZER ATEAEZEHRR
HK$'000
BETT
Leased properties
HENE
Leased properties under sublease 41,890 Income capitalisation Reversionary rental value HK$7-HK$21 The higher the reversionary
arrangement by the Group (2023: 40,540) method (2023: HK$8.5-HK$21) per rental value, the higher the
month per square foot fair value
AREENHLHETZHENE 41890 W NER{LE EHEHE BERREAEBILEE®2T EEHEMS ATEES
(20237 : 40,540) (20235 : M8 5L E
BEEATT)
Capitalisation rate 3.375% The higher the capitalisation
(2023: 3.25%) rate, the lower the fair
value
BRI E 3.375% B Egs ATE
(2023%F: 3.25%) MR
Investment properties under re-development
Investment properties under 2,660,000 Residual method Price per square foot HK$18,500 per square foot The higher the price per
re-development (2023: 3,220,000) for office premises square foot, the higher the
(2023: HK$21,000 per square fair value
foot for office premises);

HK$19,000 - HK$31,000
(2023: HK$24,000 - HK$32,000)
per square foot for retail
properties

HK$7,000 (2023: HK$7,200)
per square foot for industrial
properties

ERRENE 2,660,000 FghE BYARER BRENETHFREKBS0T BEHFRERLER  ATE
(202341 3,220,000) (0B%F : HAEWEFTFHIR  HE

#821,0007T)

TENEBFER
7 #19,0007T £ # #31,0007T
(2023% : % 1524,000T &
7 #32,0007)

IENEETHR
##7,0007T
(20235 : % #7,2007T)

Estimated constructionand  HK$2,900 - HK$6,900 The higher the estimated
other professional costs (2023: HK$2,300 - HK$6,600) construction and other
to completion per square foot professional costs, the

lower the fair value

TR BRER BT HREK29007T HAREREBELRA
HEERAE £ #%6,9007T M ATELE

(20235 : %1#2,3007
Zi8%6,60070)

Estimated profit margin 10% - 15% The higher estimated profit
required to hold and (2023: 10%-15%) margin, the lower the fair
develop the investment value
properties to completion

RERERREMEET 10%Z15% HEfEEEs ATE
R i s A B (2023%F: 10% =15%) HIE

There were no changes to the valuation techniques for the BRIA EHRERAN - FRNREYE 2 HERM
investment properties other than disclosed above during the A A ) o

year.
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17.

Investment Properties (Continued)

The fair value measurement is based on the above investment
properties’ highest and best use. The fair values of certain
investment properties have been adjusted to exclude prepaid
or accrued operating lease income to avoid double counting.

As at 31 December 2024, certain investment properties of the
Group with total carrying amount of approximately
HK$9,241,800,000 (2023: approximately HK$10,964,400,000)
were pledged to secure borrowings of approximately
HK$1,359,858,000 (2023: approximately HK$1,516,799,000)
(note 26).

As at 31 December 2022, certain investment properties of the
Group with total carrying amount of HK$2,200,600,000 are
related to a sale and purchase agreement entered by the
Group with an independent third party on 9 August 2022, to
sell the entire interests of a wholly-owned subsidiary, Linking
Smart Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Disposal Group”) at a
total consideration of HK$3,208.8 million. The Disposal Group
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the
immediate sole shareholder of the owners of the investment
properties. As at 31 December 2022, total deposit of
HK$320,881,500 were received by the Group from the
purchaser and included in the consolidated statement of
financial position under “trade and other payables”. Details of
the above transaction are disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 11 August 2022 and 19 January 2023
respectively and the circular of the Company dated 23
September 2022.

On 19 January 2023, the Group, the purchaser, the seller
guarantor and the purchaser guarantor entered into a
supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to extend the date of the
purchaser’s payment of the further deposit of HK$320,881,500
for six months from 9 February 2023 to 9 August 2023 with the
interest of HK$11,200,083 agreed to be paid and paid on
8 February 20283. Details of the Supplemental Agreement are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated
19 January 2023.

17.

g%%(n‘ﬁ
ﬁ?ﬁﬁiE&VtL&§%¥Z?%&
RERRZ - ETREVEZLATEDKR
B DHERIEN K E R EHE R AR
BREEE -

RZZBZWNF+—A=+—0 ~&£EEH
AR T 4818 4978 #9,241,800,000 T (— 2 — =
£ 1 #)78110,964,400,0007T) 2 & TR E Y
599 DUE B B 2149 75 11,350,858,0007T
TT =4 4975 11,516,799,0007T) 2 &
B (M 5E26)

R-ZB-—F+-A=+—H A£EEA
#2875 #2,200,600,0007T 2 & T & ¥
SRAEBR-_ZT-_—F€)\ ANLREBT
F = FEIM A E 2 B WE A 7 Linking
Smart Limited X E B AR ([HEERE ) 2
HEZ EEHE BREABE
3,208,800,0007T » HEEBEAARF 2 &
BMBRBIRIEEMERBAZEZE—
R - RZEZZF+A=+—H &%
B % E 5 U R % € 4258 7% #320,881,500

T URABREFBERRRZ[E S R EAM
Jmﬁlm¢ ERt R BFERAREEE

DRR T _FN\A+—BR-ZT_=F
—ATNBZRERRBRRA T - —FA
AZ+t=BZ@BEHRHE -

RZEZ_=F—A+NA X&£E BF -
BEHERARBFERAG LTS (1
THElD) BUEASEEREKE 52 T#
— F 1% 4 8 1320,881,5007T 2 HHEA L & /<
BA - =F_AhRLERE=Z=
—FENANB U HERERINAFNBBE
11,200,0837C ° ZF EER=—ZE-=F— A
Aaiﬁ BRBEFBHNALRBH
BT =F—A+NAZAEN-
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17. IREMEER)

17. Investment Properties (Continued)

On 9 August 2023, further deposit in the sum of
HK$320,881,500 (the “Further Deposit”) was due and payable
to the Group. The Purchaser, nonetheless, failed to pay the
Further Deposit. In response, the Company has since sought
legal advice and reviewed the options and recourse available,
and made an announcement on 10 August 2023 to give
progress update.

On 13 September 2023, the Group further entered into a
settlement agreement with the Purchaser and the Purchaser
Guarantor. A HK$32,000,000 non-refundable settlement sum
was paid to and received by the Group and the Agreement

RZE-_=ZFNANB  XEBEESISZ
i — F 1R 4 B ¥3820,881,5007T ([ # — 1%
EDEH HEFTEINE— SRS -
EABE ARABENZEDEAEEE
B UTEGUAZEAERBRMNE BB
RZZE-_ZFN\A+EERAMH  BHE
BB -

RZE_=FAA+=F FAEFERETRL
BHERANE—DSILMERZE  AEH
BES MW REZFNES BESE
#32,000,0007T * 7% 5% B AR #5 L it 70 &%

was terminated pursuant to the terms of the aforesaid i - R I == = A NN =)
settlement agreement. Details of the above are set out in the AT —FNAT=AZAMHA -
announcement of the Company dated 13 September 2023.

18. Y% - MERRE

18. Property, Plant and Equipment

Leasehold Leasehold Fixture, fixtures Motor
lands Buildings improvements and equipment vehicles Total
R

HELH [ kS HEYERE RERRH RE ag

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BETT
Opening net carrying amount FUEEFE 78,424 32,978 2,201 515 596 114,714
Addition 0 - - - 961 1,641 2,602
Disposal/write-off HE /s - - (282) (5) (638) (925)
Deficit on revaluation (note 10) BEEE(ME0 - (120) - - - (120)
Depreciation nE (529) (880) (1,810) (202) (198) (3,619)
Exchange realignment ERAE (273) - - 3) (15) (291)
Closing net carrying amount FREEDFE 71,622 31,978 109 1,266 1,386 112,361
As at 31 December 2024 R-B-mE

+-A=t+-H

Cost/Valuation BA/fE 86,908 31,978 42,827 14,032 3,890 179,635
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (9,286) - (42,718) (12,766) (2,504) (67,274)
Net carrying amount EEFE 77,622 31,978 109 1,266 1,386 112,361
Analysis of cost/valuation BE/HENMT
Atcost N 71,622 - 109 1,266 1,386 80,383

At professional valuation REEEE - 31,978 - - - 31,978

71,622 31,978 109 1,266 1,386 112,361
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. . 2 =
18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18. ¥1% - G E R # (&)
Leasehold Leasehold Fixture, fixtures Motor Leased
lands Buildings improvements and equipment vehicles properties Total
&
HELH BT HENELE RERRE AE HENE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Opening net carrying amount FNEEFE 79,391 33,978 5,096 609 ™ 2713 122,528
Disposal/write-off e/ - - (77) - - - (77)
Deficit on revaluation (note 10) EfHEB (M0 - (120) - - - - (120)
Depreciation FE (635) (880) (2,818) (121) (138) 2,713 (7,205)
Exchange realignment EXAE (432) - - 27 ) - #12)
Closing net carrying amount FREAFE 78,424 32,978 2,201 515 596 - 114,714
As at 31 December 2023 RZIB-=F
+-ZF=1+-8
Cost/Valuation BA/fE 87,358 32978 46,827 13,198 3,323 - 183,684
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (8,934) - (44,626) (12,683) @,727) - (68,970)
Net carrying amount EEFE 78,424 32978 2,201 515 596 - 14,714
Analysis of cost/valuation KA/ EERT
At cost BRA 78,424 - 2,201 515 596 - 81,736
At professional valuation REERE - 32,978 - - - - 32,978
78,424 32978 2,201 515 596 - 114,714

The above items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using straight-

line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold lands/leased properties
Buildings

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Over the lease period
2%

10%-30%

10%-20%

6%-15%

Ly BERZEBEBEEEMGTA
MANERESZE  BTIFEREFGE
H:

e+ THEWE eI
BF 2%
HEWERE 10%-30%
RAL - EERRE 10%-20%
B 6%-15%
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s buildings in Hong Kong
are stated at valuation of HK$31,978,000 (2023:
HK$32,978,000). The Group’s buildings were revalued by C&W
based on net replacement cost method. For the year ended 31
December 2024, a revaluation loss of approximately
HK$120,000 (2023: Loss HK$120,000) had been recognised.

As at 31 December 2024, leasehold land and buildings of the
Group with carrying amount of HK$94,169,000 (2023:
HK$94,245,000) were pledged to secure borrowings of the
Group (note 26).

The fair value of the Group’s owner-occupied buildings is a
level 3 recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the

opening and closing fair value balance is provided below.

There was no transfers into or out of level 3 during the year.

18. 1% « W ER=RE (&)

RZZE-NF+=-A=+—8 A£ERE
B2 BT A E A 31,978,000t (— T =
=4 : B ¥32,078,0007T) 5 Bk - AEE 2
BFHBERTRFESENALER - H
ECE - NF+-A=+—HIFEEHES
BHEEE120,000 (ZE = =F  [HEBE
120,0007T) E R °

R-ZB-NFE+-A=+t—H AEHEM
IRMEIE AB194,169,0007T (—Z T - =4F : /&
#94,245,00070) 2 M & + b R IEFAES
REBEZEEHFE26) o

REFEERABFZATFEAFIHEELEA
FEE -  FURFRATFEEHZHE
YT o

RAFE > WEEAREHEL -

2024 2023

= e 1 - 3 —F-=
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETT AETT

Opening balance (level 3 recurring

FE (FIME T

fair value) NEE) 32,978 33,978
Depreciation e (880) (880)
Deficit on revaluation of properties held ~ EfhEF1EE R E 2 E#E

for own use (120) (120)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair FRanm(BEIRKLTENL

value) NFEE) 31,978 32,978
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18. 1% + [ &= R R & (&)

In determining the fair values of the buildings, the Group
engages an independent qualified professional valuer to
perform the valuation. The management works with the
independent qualified professional valuer to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for level 3 fair
value measurement. Where there is a material change in the
fair value of the owner-occupied buildings, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the Directors.

There has been no change to the valuation technique during
the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual
use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these buildings are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used).

Building
held by the Group measured Fair value as at Valuation Significant
at revaluation model 31 December 2024 technique(s)
RZB-mE
AEARARER +=ZRA=+-H
BEAEZRF ZATHE fEERE
HK$'000
BT

unobservable input(s)

TEFARRYE

EEEBRTAVER AEECZBBEY
BEBEXRMEMETHE - EEEES
YEERBEEMAEMAEREIRAFER
EFEEE 2HERMEEE - HERE
FRAVPEHREARZS BEREERS
KERE -

ATEHBNER LR BB R EE
Mg REERARIEESR -

TREEMMAET RS R AFEC
B2 B8 B A (B B R BOB) 2 B K -

Interrelationship between
significant unobservable
input(s) and fair value
measurement

Range of significant
unobservable inputs

FRTTHRENBA
TRTTREUMEE AFEGBZEARR

Owner-occupied buildings

BREF 31,978 (20234 : 32,978) HEE M A

Note: Building replacement cost per square feet is determined with
reference to market comparables of constructing works, taking into
account of use, location and other individual factors such as total
floor level and type of structure.

SYARETEEKA

31,978 (2023: 32,978)  Net replacement cost  Building replacement cost HK$4,100 per square foot The higher the building
per square feet

(2023: HK$4,200) (note) replacement cost per feet
with reference to
comparables, the higher

the fair value

FFHRBEL1007T 2RULBNEZERET
(20234 : j&#4,2007T) BENAMS  ATEY
(FisE) =

M 8FTREFEERATIZENS LALR
ZRETREMEE  EhsthBE LEMN
RpgERBEYBASEMENRZE -
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18. 1% + [ &= R & (&)

The Group as Lessee FEEEBEREAN
Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and FRELEEGIADE BELZE)
equipment)

Leasehold Leased
land properties Total

HELH HEYME 4R

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
EETRT EETT BT

As at 31 December 2023 MN_TB_=%
+=-—A=+—8 78,424 - 78,424
As at 31 December 2024 =t e =
+=-A=+—H 77,622 — 77,622
For the year ended HE-_ZT—-_=F
31 December 2023 TZA=+—HBLFE
Depreciation charge TEMXZ (535) (2,713) (3,248)
Exchange realignment HE 3, B (432) = (432)
Total cash outflow for leases HMERSRHLEE (26,562)
For the year ended HE_Z_-_NF
31 December 2024 TZA=+—BLFE
Depreciation charge WERZ (529) - (529)
Exchange realignment b 5 38 & (273) - (273)
Total cash outflow for leases HEBReRHRE (23,808)
For both years, the Group leases various commercial and PREFE AEEEETRABHERTE
industrial premises for its operations. Lease contracts are MEELE - N =ENFErBEF
entered into for fixed term of three to four years, but may have BRI » MERJAA R AT B IE R 1S4 -
extension options as described below. In determining the lease RETHBARTETAMEFNRE K&
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, ERANC TETETAEHNAERRNITL
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines FHY o

the period for which the contract is enforceable.
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18. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 18. ¥1% - G E R R # (&)

The Group as Lessee (Continued)

The Group has extension options in a number of leases for
commercial and industrial premises. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets
used in the Group’s operations. The majority of extension
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessors. The Group assesses at lease
commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options. The potential exposures to
these future lease payments for extension options in which the
Group is not reasonably certain to exercise:

Lease liabilities recognised
as at 31 December

FREEBERBEANE

AEBERETREBELRIXENENEE
THRAEREEREE RTEER/BEDE
ERNMTAEEEERKLLMANEELY
BRI Ay EREZEEH
AEBEITEM AR BB L HEAITE -
AEEREERKBEMFTEREAERETE
STELEREREE AKBEYREAERE
ETREEREEENZERAREENRZ

3 5 40 -
B R

Potential future lease payments
not included in lease liabilities
as at 31 December

2024 2023 2024 2023
R+-RA=+—B®ZEH R+-ZBE+—-HBXRHAABEEREDN
HEER BERKRBEERR
—E-ME —8C-= —EC-lmE —EC-=#
(undiscounted) (undiscounted)
(RIFH) (RITH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ok BT T BT
Commercial and BERIEME
industrial premises
— Hong Kong - &% 40,008 37,924 61,910 101,401

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the
Group did not exercise any extension options.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option upon the occurrence of
either a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there is no
such triggering event.

REBEE_Z_WER_FE-_=F+-_A=+
—BIEE  AEBVETFETAERE
R

o R B REHRBERNIRERE
FHBRAT AR H &SRR AEE
SERRCAEBMTETELERBERE - R
HE_Z-NWEFER-ZT-_=F+=-A=+—
AEFE BEEEEEsErt-
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Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)
Restrictions or covenants on leases

In addition, lease liabilities of HK$24,021,000 are recognised
with related sublease of the leased properties of
HK$41,890,000 included in investment properties as at 31
December 2024 (2023: lease liabilities of HK$37,924,000 and
related sublease of the leased properties of HK$40,540,000
included in investment properties. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Properties for Sale

18.

19.

ME BERREGE)

TH S PR 5=k 2255

o RZEZNFEFZ A=+ —BERHE
1%%1 7 24,021,0007T TE’E\WJ%Z*E?%
3 F 78 #41,890,000TT s AR B W (—
= HEAaE /%%379240007z&fﬁ?f
Y% 7 H8 5 5 40,540,000 5T A %
BEME) REBEARBOREEEEMNE
BN AERE THEMNEMEE - B
EEETSBEGTIKE -

2024 2023

—T-WE —EZ=F

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T 7T T

Completed properties for sale EEXRFEDE 1,017,723 1,381,903
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+t A=+—HZzEEE 1,017,723 1,381,903

As at 31 December 2024, included in the completed properties
for sale was a joint operation project amounting to
approximately HK$3,275,000 (2023: HK$3,360,000) to jointly
develop a property site for residential purpose located at 1-11
Lai Yin Street and 2—-12 Jones Street, Tai Hang, Hong Kong in
which the Group has a 20.24% equity interest. In 2014, the
Directors determined that the Group’s share of the completed
units would be put up for sale when completed and,
accordingly, reclassified its proportionate share of the interest
in this property development from investment properties under
construction to properties under development for sale. The
Group bears a proportionate share of the joint operation’s
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. The occupation
permit was released by the Buildings Department during the
year ended 31 December 2016. During the years ended 31
December 2024, several units are sold and the corresponding
revenue and cost of properties for sale are recognised (2023:
Nil).

R-Z-NE+-A=+—8 2EKEFE
Y EBIE—TH AL E3,275000L (= F
— =4 : B¥3,360,0007T) A EIEE - LA
HEAZE —EAURNE SN EEHIENR
METH2ERFIEEERG 2 W EME
HpAREBEF2024% 7 BlE - R - F
W EERTASEBED(h 2 BB EM
BREKEBRE Bt "EEBEZE
PIEGZYEERIBEEER  BERKRE
MEERDHEFERERYE - A&H
EERLOIEGEEXEB L EE BFE -
KaEkX EFEREBEZE_ZT -+
ZRA=tT—BUEFEAZFEDATTAE -
REE-_ZT-_NF+-_A=+—HIFEE
ELZEEMN UHEREBZGEEMER
HEEERA(CEZ=F &)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE = [JF+ =/ =+ —HI F&

20. Trade and Other Receivables/Loan 20. S RHMEKRIE TEW
Receivables [=FN
2024 2023
—E-ME —TEC-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
EET T BT T

Current assets: HEEE -

Trade receivables 5 W FIR

— contract with customers —EFEE&4 9,439 8,472
— rental receivables —EWHEe 45,747 28,482
Total trade receivables B 5 W IE A% 55,186 36,954
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (6,291) 4,562)
Total trade receivables, net B RWFIBRE  FH 48,895 32,392
Loan receivables (Note) JiE U & 2 (B RE) 154,365 145,385
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEBERE (141,776) (141,776)
Total loan receivables, net el E R ERE - F A 12,589 3,609

Other receivables, utility deposits and Hih U GRIE « RERE

prepayment e RIBFIE 93,730 110,939
Total trade and other receivables DEERDEECZES R
categorised as current assets Efh IR IE R 155,214 146,940
Non-current assets: FETEEE -
Loan receivables (Note) FE U & s (B FE) 222,181 4,349
377,395 151,289
As at 1 January 2023, the gross carrying amount of trade RZBE_=ZF—A—H REHZTFAEHHN
receivables from contracts with customers amounted to B S5 IE 2 BRE 48 B &8 9,753,000

HK$9,753,000. JC °
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE=[J#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

20. Trade and Other Receivables/Loan

Receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, based on invoice dates,
the aging analysis of the trade receivables, net of allowance for
credit losses, was the following:

20. ESRHEMEWKRIE FEWK

B®&(E)
RZE—WMFR_E-_=F+=-A=+—
A REXZAH BHEKIBENGRE
BEEERERZERRESTRIIMOT

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BET T

0-30 days 0&E30K 12,778 12,040
31-90 days 31FE90K 16,002 9,114
91-180 days 91E180K 9,300 4,338
Over 180 days B E180K 10,815 6,900
Total trade receivables, net B RBFIBRTE 5 48,895 32,392

Normally, other than those property leasing rental receivables
which are secured by rental deposits, the Group does not
obtain collateral from other customers.

As at 31 December 2024, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$48,895,000 (2023: HK$32,392,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, HK$20,115,000 (2023: HK$11,238,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default
as these debtors have a good business relationship with the
Group and recurring overdue records of these debtors with
satisfactory settlement history.

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables directly.

—RnE BUESRSBERZZEFVE
HERKHESIN AEETSREMES
Y BR 4K 4 d

R-Z-_WME+-_A=+—0 AKAEHzZ
FERGELESKBENR TS AHE AR
T 42 (B 78 #648,895,0007 L (Z T - =4 : /&
#£32,392,0007T) < & 7 A o 1 @ Bl 4 &4
o B EE20,115,000 L (ZE — = F B
11,238,0007T) £ #1 890K sk LA £+ Iz F~
REBEYN FRARZEEKABRLAERS
RUTEBBEE MZEEBALESAR
ERBELTHERBRTIE 2R -

BRAE 5 UG IR Z B B R IA B H B AC
8 0 BRIEARSEE MR EI L E IR 28
HBE - EZBERT  HEBRSEERN
B 5 & WK T o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A B

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE = [JF+ =/ =+ —HI F&

20. Trade and Other Receivables/Loan 20. ES R HMEWRIE TEWK

Receivables (Continued)

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits for the years ended 31 December
2024 and 2023 are set out in note 39.2.

Note:

As at 1 January 2021, included in loan receivables is an aggregate amount
of HK$4,000,000 which were secured, interest-bearing at Hong Kong
Prime Interest Rate minus 2.5% per annum and repayable within 1 year
from reporting date. The repayment date of these loan receivables was
extended by one year during the year ended 31 December 2021 and
further nine months during the year ended 31 December 2022 with a
principal repayment of HK$400,000 and a further HK$200,000 principal
repayment in the year 2023.

For the remaining loan receivables amounting to HK$231,370,000 (2023:
HK$4,558,000) which are secured, interest-bearing calculated based on a
range adjust (2023: 2% to 2.5% per annum) for the first 36 months from
the date of loan drawdown and thereafter at the Hong Kong Prime Interest
Rate. The loan receivables were repayable in 120 to 360 monthly
instalments (2023: 216 to 360 monthly instalments) with the final instalment
payable in year 2035 to 2047 (2023: year 2035 to 2047). As at 31
December 2024, loan receivables of HK$228,078,000 (2023:
HK$1,092,000) could be early terminated by the borrowers at the principal
and accrued interest.

The current portion of HK$12,589,000 (2023: HK$3,609,000) which is
expected to be recovered within one year is classified as current assets
while the balance of HK$222,181,000 (2023: HK$4,349,000) is classified as
non-current assets which is expected to be recovered over one year.

No loan receivables are past due as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. The
loan receivables are secured by first and second mortgage on the
properties located in Hong Kong. The Group is not permitted to sell or
repledge the properties in the absence of default by the borrower. There
has not been any significant changes in the quality of the collateral held for
the loans receivables. Details of impairment assessment for the year
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are set out in note 39.2.

B (&)
BE-T-WER-F-=F+-A=t-—
AL 4 [ B 5 A M 3ROR - B OB
T 2 008 P {8 ¥ 1 B0 W 5500.2 -

i

RZE-_—F—A—B JIABKRERALEE
4,000,0007c 2 RIBABEIF HESREIRN X
WoLEZFEREE  WEARBEBHEF; —F
RER ZEEKEFHEEISEREE_2——
FH+ZA=+—HUEFEER—F  REE=-ZT=
—F+Z A=+ —B I FEEEAR& % 400,000
TRBERNAEAR  TR-ZTZ=FE—FEER
4% 78 #200,0007T °

HepERE R AEE231,370,000T (Z T = =4
75 #64,558,00070) 2 RIBAEEA - RIEAENHE
M e ARBERARFE MR (ZT ==
FFEFRVEZ25FE)FE  HERBARERT
KRB o EUE KD 1203608 (ZF - =4 : 216
E360H) FAEE R HERENR_ZT=HF
ECENALF(CEZF R RFE TN+
F)Xf - RZZBZMFE+ZA=+—H BREX
7 #5228,078,0007T (=& = =4 : 7¥#1,092,0007T)
AHRERARAS R BT &L

TEHAR — F Uk ez BIEAEE 5 7 #512,589,0007T (=
T =4 B HB,609000T) N EARBEE
8 78 #202,181,00070 (= T = = & : #1£4,349,000
TN ERIERDEE - E‘EHHH# BiE— F R
@a

R-B-_MER-_F_=F+_A=t—AHE"
HEBER - BREFACRBEEZME BRI
RAEER - ERALEELD - AEETAHER
BEYEX- - BRERERBECAARZEEYE
FRNERED BE_T_NFR_T_=F+_
A=+ —RUEFEZRENHFBRNHITE39.2 -
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Financial Assets at FVTOCI

Financial assets at FVTOCI

As at 31 December 2024, financial assets at FVTOCI which
were investment in unlisted funds of HK$39,938,000 (2023:
HK$43,006,000) are stated at fair values.

Directors have elected to designate the investments as at
FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-term
fluctuations in these investments’ fair value in profit or loss
would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy of holding
these investments for long-term purposes and realising their
performance potential in the long run.

Financial assets at FVTOCI as at 31 December 2024 are stated
at fair value based on the net asset value of fund (i.e. fair value
of the portfolio included in the fund). The fair value
measurements are categorised to Level 3 (2023: Level 3).

Short-Term Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash

Equivalents
The cash and bank balances of the Group was summarised as
follows:

21.

22.

BRAFEHFANHGMZEBAZ
& E
BRAFEHAANEGWEZAKAZHEE
-3

R-T_NE+—A=+—0 " A FEH
AEM 2R A Z B & E B 139,938,000
(=T = =4 : & 143,006,0007T) &3 +
MEESRE IR AFEYE -

EFERERATEFAEMEEEARE
EHRE RARKRERSNBRPER X
EREQNTENERRHITALAEER
RERNMBAEZEFREMREHERE
RIFENEOREE -

R-Z-_WE+—A=+—H  &QAFE
AEME2EKRAZHBEENREESE
EFEAESBREZREBEZATE)
BAFEIE AFEFEDEAEEIR
(CE-=ZFF35) -

BHRRITER HaRBEE%

£
AEEZRERBITEBIEENT

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT

Short-term bank deposits with original REBABH=EAZ
maturity over three months RERITE R 827,153 635,200
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEYD 323,633 503,106
Total cash and bank balances Re RRITHESBRERE 1,150,786 1,138,306
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22. Short-Term Bank Deposits/Cash and Cash 22. S8R {ITH S HRE kAL E

Equivalents (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, short-term bank deposits
with original maturity over three months were placed up till 1
year depending on the immediate cash requirement of the
Group, and earned fixed-rate interest at respective time
deposits rates of range from 4.20% to 4.80% (2023 : 4.55% to
5.63%) per annum.

Included in total cash and bank balances of the Group is
HK$110,643,000 (2023: HK$168,708,000) of bank balances
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) placed with banks in the
Mainland China. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
Under the Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement and Sales and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

The Directors considered that the fair value of the cash and
cash equivalents is not materially different from their carrying
amount.

In the course of business, certain bank accounts were opened
and held in the name of certain subsidiaries in form of trust on
behalf of third parties to whom these subsidiaries provided
building management services. As at the reporting date, those
bank balances held in form of trust on behalf of third parties
and were not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group amounted to HK$82,104,000 (2023:
HK$89,278,000).

E¥(E)
REZE-MER—E-_=F+=-A=+—1H"
REBEBH=ZTMAZEHREITHT
RERFHRE—F  KRIEAEEZ AR
BE&FRMmE I&VKEZE@T X
A R A F4.20% £4.80% (— T = =
4.55% 25.63%) R BXE 7E F| = 2 7 B o

AR EER S RIETTEBRBEEETNR
HAEPIWimyFﬁfE"%;mM%ﬁo 643,000

TT(ZZE - =4 : #168,708,0007T) Z AR
%(U\E%ﬁuﬂﬁﬁﬁmaﬁ% AR IEA
QEE)GL?;@ZEM o ARIBHRBE R 2 INEE
BIEPIREE  EELRNEEERT A
3] X/E%«EEHE‘ HEITINE EH 2 BRITIA
ARERBINE -

EEZRA BehkReFEYZATESR
FHEYTESERER -

REFBREFT  BETHBARINERER
F=H(HBREMEREEFERREZ
}\i)w*?ﬁ/fiﬁtﬁ SREFEAE TIRITE
F o RIEBE - 25 A EE1%82,104,000
i(:%:zi | 785 #89,278,0007T) 2 R 17
ERDUAEARARE=FFF  TER
Z!S%@Zi*wﬂ%iﬁi%m&%o
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23. Trade and Other Payables 23. B RHMEMRIE
2024 2023
—E-ME TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT
Trade payables E S RIE 24,231 24,757
Receipt in advance T8 UL FR 18 31,352 35,576
Deposit received on disposal of an HEREMEZEWIZS
investment property 793 305
Rental deposits received BElWHEEE 120,790 123,639
Accruals on construction works EETIEETHE 235,185 188,996
Other accrued expenses and other Hib et 2R &
payables H fth J& 5K I8 153,915 171,710
566,266 544,983
Trade payables had credit periods ranging from 30 to 90 days. B REMNRIBZEEBHN FI0EWX - 1B
Based on invoice dates, the ageing analysis of trade payables BEREOH BZRENFBEZERRITEH
was the following: B
2024 2023
—E-UE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BT T
0-30 days 0E30K 4,705 10,801
31-90 days 31E90K 3,472 1,188
Over 90 days B0k 16,054 12,768

Total trade payables B RIAREE 24,231 24,757
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24. Contract Liabilities 24. BHAERE

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BET T

Deposits received in advance
associated with pre-sale of
properties for sale situated in:

— Hong Kong — BB 27,853 185,016
— the Mainland China — REA 3,086 4,366
30,939 189,382
As at 1 January 2023, the carrying amount of contract liabilities RZZEZ=F—A—H  aHaE2EKEE
is HK$120,568,000. 7% 7% 120,568,000 °
As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, deposits received in REBR-ZE-_NMFER-_F-_=F+=-A=
advance received by Group for the disposal of properties for + AR EREARREHRBT —FNR
sale are expected to be completed and sold within one year BTREEZHEMERBKTS -

from the end of the reporting period.
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24. Contract Liabilities (Continued)
The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward

24, BHAEEE)
THRIFRAEEREFANEBRR 2K
HEEURERBAEBMNEA Y BUOEE

contract liabilities and how much relates to performance 2% -

obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.

Sales of Sales of
completed completed
properties for properties for
sale sale
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
SHECER HEDEMK
HEMXE SEME
BEE-—FT_AF EEIEtoaEts
+TZHA=+—H papei=ad=]
IEEE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Revenue recognised that was included in st AF I AN ABHEHZ
the contract liabilities balance at the 2R =
beginning of the year 158,397 2,040
Revenue to be recognised from REBITRABEGTER
unsatisfied performance obligations P& 144,540 1,013,059

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of TECHRENEE

contract liabilities recognised are as follows:

TR Z— BRI RIGER

The Group receives 10% to 30% of the contract amount as
deposits from customers when they sign the sale and
purchase agreement. However, depending on market
conditions, the Group may offer customers a discount
compared to the listed sales price, provided that the
customers agree to pay the balance of the consideration early
while construction is still ongoing. The deposits result in
contract liabilities being recognised throughout the property
construction period until the customer obtains control of the
completed properties for sale.

AEEEEFPZEEEHEZFWREOE
BZ10%EI0NIER/FFRIE » AM @ A%
Bl BT A EEBREFREH
T ARREFPREERETRINAER
THERFXNRESRE - ZFT2ER
EEBRMFZEEMHABRIAEGOAE &
EEFPRBLERGENEZITHRAL -
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25. Lease Liabilities 25 HEEBE
2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT IT BT
Lease liabilities payables ENEEEE
Within one year —F R 15,652 16,921
With a period of more than one year — & IA 24,356 21,003
40,008 37,924
Less: amount due for settlement B R12@ A AR HREES A
within 12 months shown mEaEz e
under current liabilities (15,652) (16,921)
Amount due for settlement after 12 #1218 B 14 B H/5(E % A IR 8
months shown under non-current BEzE
liabilities 24,356 21,003
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to ERREERBE 2 METHESEERX
lease liabilities is 3.93% (2023: 3.93%). B393% (Z T =4 :3.93%) °
All lease liabilities were denominated in the functional EHEAEHUNEEESEERE 2R

currencies of the relevant group entities. KEEHE ©



26. Borrowings
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE=[J#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

Current liabilities
Bank loans — secured
Non-current liabilities
Bank loans — secured

26. £&
2024 2023
= e 1 - 3 —F-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEET T BT T
mEAaE

RITER—BIEE 891,298 585,072

ERB fa%
RITER—BHEE 468,560 931,727

1,359,858 1,516,799
Carrying amount of bank loans BIBEBERBZEANEHTETER
repayable based on the scheduled HERE(EE 2 RITEHNER
repayment dates set out in the loan HiE:
agreements:
Within one year —FR 891,298 585,072
More than one year, but not —FUAEBETBBMRE
exceeding two years 19,571 931,727
More than two years, but not MEN FETBRRAF
exceeding five years 448,989 -
Total bank loans RITEREHE 1,359,858 1,516,799
Carrying amount of bank loans matured —FRNEBHRITERZ
within one year (shown under current FEEGIRABER)
liabilities) (891,298) (585,072)
Amount shown under non-current FEmEBBEMIEE
liabilities 468,560 931,727
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26. Borrowings (Continued) 26. IBE&(4)

As at 31 December 2024, bank loans are secured by certain RZZEZWE+=ZA=+—H " RITERD
investment properties and property, plant and equipment of A 7S £ (8] BR TH 48 (B 49 78 #9,335,969,0007T
the Group with a total carrying value of approximately LETEHREMENRDME BEREZE
HK$9,335,969,000 (2023: certain investment properties, certain ZEZ=FASERERBENREBE
properties for sale and property, plant and equipment of the 11,058,645,0007L & TR EWZE - B T
Group with a total carrying value of approximately EMERYE BMEREE)IEAER - o
HK$11,058,645,000) as set out in notes 17 and 18 respectively RS RERE IS RR KT FE17518 ©

to the consolidated financial statements.

The analysis that shows the remaining contractual maturities of BARASEEEZCHTAENIHARZAN
the Group’s borrowings is set out in note 39.2 to the R GE M HREMFE39.2 0

consolidated financial statements.

The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings at the RBEARAEBEEECERAENT
reporting date were as follows:

2024 2023
—E-lmE —EZ=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Bank loans IMITER
— HK$-denominated loans ~ — B E & Hong Kong Hong Kong
Inter-bank Inter-bank
Offered Rate Offered Rate
(“HIBOR”) (“HIBOR”)
HIBOR+1.15% p.a. +1.12% to
EHBRITEZE HIBOR+1.15% p.a.
RER(EERZE BBBRITRZE
wEDEE wETEBRZE
EESE SN B +FEFI=E
+ 5 | #E1.15% 112%E BB
[EFE

+5 | %1.15%
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27. Deferred Taxation 27. IEREHIE
The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows: ELERIARE 28T
2024 2023
—E-UE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
As at 1 January Hn—HA—H 130,160 124,655
Deferred taxation charged to profit or JiE =i 1 G R 1
loss (note 13) (M 3E13) 5,711 5,505
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 135,871 130,160
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets NTRREEMBERARERZ FERIE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position MBAEREENRRAFERBTFE
and the movements during the current and prior years: s
Surplus on
revaluation
Accelerated of owner-
tax occupied
depreciation properties Tax losses Total
g EBH
BIERE MERS BIEKE Foks)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BETT
As at 1 January 2023 NZE-=fF— 126,080 6,448 (7,873) 124,655
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss REFMER/( EJr MT #13)
(note 13) 4,372 20) 1153 5,505
As at 31 December 2023 R-Z2-=f+-A=+-H 130,452 6,428 (6,720) 130,160
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss REZEME/ GIA) (M 13)
(note 13) 9,159 (20) (3,428) 5,711

As at 31 December 2024 RZZZWE+=A=1+—H 139,611 6,408 (10,148) 135,871
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27. Deferred Taxation (Continued) 27. IBEHIE(E)
As at 31 December 2024, the Group has aggregate amount of RZZEZWF+ZA=+—08 KTEEBEH
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings AR B A M B B A B R 0 IR BN 2 AR B R
of the Mainland China subsidiaries of approximately M E R BB H) B 22,213,000 (=T ==
HK$22,213,000 (2023: HK$28,394,000) of which no deferred F ¢ 5 128,394,0007T) I & 1 52 IE B 18
tax liabilities has been recognised. No deferred tax liabilities BfE - BARASEGEMIZEHEMNBARZ
have been recognised in respect of these differences because BEBREAREERREZEMBLRTRNA
the Group is in a position to control the dividend policies of its BT EERRE MU BB ZEERE
subsidiaries and the Directors considered that no dividend will BRELHBEE Bt EEEZEHT
be declared by these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. ERIEGRED -
Thus, such difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax RMERAR AEBEEARDARBBED
losses of approximately HK$94,758,000 (2023: 7 #94,758,000T (= T = = F: B K
HK$73,694,000) available for offset against future profits. A 73,694,00070) AT AR R OEF - B3t
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of ZEFEBRRECEHRBBEENEK
approximately HK$61,504,000 (2023: HK$40,727,000) of such 61,504,0007T (== = =4 : % #£40,727,000
losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect TT) ° PSR AR s AR B FEOAD - bk 37 A
of the remaining approximately HK$33,254,000 (2023: BLER A B #33,254,0007L (ZE =5 /&
HK$32,967,000) due to unpredictability of future profit streams. #£32,967,0007T) M RIE LTI & E -
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of AERMEEBEEREHRARAEEFER
approximately HK$11,315,000 (2023: HK$8,255,000) which will B8 2 B 1B 4978 #11,315,000 L (ZE = =
expiry by five consecutive year. Other losses may be carried T 1 B 1#8,255,0007T) o E B 18 7] /R R A
forward indefinitely. e o
28. Share Capital 28. &
2024 2023
—E-mE —To=F
Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
B &8 BETT ELSGE 42 BT
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10  HRXEEE #0102
each TER 5,000,000,000 500,000 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BERIRER:
As at 1 January and R—A—BE
31 December +-A=+—H 283,308,635 28,331 283,308,635 28,331
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29. Reserves 29. fitE
The Group b
2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Share premium (note (a)) A% 17 % 1B (Bt 5% (a) 690,811 690,811
Capital redemption reserve (note (b)) & 7K FE 0] R 1 (BT 5 (o)) 295 295
Investment revaluation reserve HEEGHE 41 3,424
Retained profits IR 14,999,252 17,490,794
Exchange reserve i 5 R (43,837) (40,573)
Special reserve (note (c)) 5 B & 4 (B 3 (0)) 1,848 1,848
Proposed final and special dividends BEARBRER RS
(note 15(a)) (B 3E15(0) - 283,309
15,648,410 18,429,908
Notes: M s -
(@) Share premium represents the excess of consideration received @) B EEEMRBRESRERTRMAE
over the par value of share issued. AR e
(o) Capital redemption reserve represents the amount equal to the par (o) EAEOREEBEERDERMEEZ K
value of the bought-back shares, and such funds transferred from B ZEE2EBARBE T -

retained profits.

© The special reserve of the Group represented the difference © AEBEZFAFBRBRBEAEE-NNEF
between the nominal value of the share capital issued by the SHBARFCEITRAABERENE QR
Company in exchange for the nominal value of the share capital of MRATEE 2 Z5 -

the subsidiaries pursuant to the Group’s re-organisation in 1997.

Details of the movements in the above reserves are set out in titBE B EEHE RGN BRESE
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 216 16E2I0B PR &K o

to 219 to the consolidated financial statements.
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29. ﬁgﬁ(n‘ﬁ

29. Reserves (Continued)

The Company EAT
Proposed
Capital final and
Share  redemption  Contributed Retained special
premium reserve surplus profits dividends Total
&% BEAHR
RiiEE RERE ABES  REEN  BIRE E L
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT EETT BETR EETT BETR BB
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c)
(it 3£ (e) (P 3 (o)) (M3 ()
Asat 1 January 2023 RZZ-=#-f-H 690,811 29 149,964 582,182 56,662 2479914
Profitand other comprehensive ~ EREFI REH2EMA
income for the year - - - 400 - 400
Final dividends paid BRZZ2-__5XH
for 2022 (note 15(o)) T 8. (M 15(0) - - - - (56,662) (56,662)
Proposed final and special BEZE--ERERKA
dividends for 2023 note 15/a)) 1 8.0 EE15(a) - - (283,309) - 283,309 -
As at 31 December 2023 RZZZ=%+-A=1-H 690,811 295 866,655 582,582 283,309 2,423,652
Profit and other comprehensive ~~ EREFIR £ 2EHRA
income for the year - - - 125 - 125
Final dividends paid BERZEZ=%%H
for 2023 (note 15(t) i & (it 315(0) - - - - (283,309) (283,309)
As at 31 December 2024 RZT-ME
+-A=1-AR 690,811 295 866,655 582,707 - 2,140,468
Notes: T 7 -

Share premium represents the excess of consideration received
over the par value of shares issued.

Capital redemption reserve represents the amount equal to the par
value of the bought-back shares transferred.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for all
the issued ordinary shares of Lucky Spark Limited (a subsidiary)
and the value of the net underlying assets of the subsidiaries
acquired. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is available for
distribution to the shareholders under certain circumstances.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a
distribution out of contribution surplus if:

1) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

2 the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

Rt BRI ESRERITROEE
ZEF -

BAREE
BEZ A

FEEAERCEERBERMDE

BN B4 THIE B 1 TLAMRER Lucky Spark Limited
(—RMBRR) Z2HEETEBR ZAQAA
BhHEEEMUBHNEBAREBFEEER
ZEE BREARE-NN-FR7E K
ﬂ%%T) CEEBETERATARB ZBME T

DIRTFRE - R - WEELEUTER  AAQ
AN B BB E RSk AR B s EH 5
I

(1) PREHNINERTENE RN
[ER7 3

@ HEAEZAZRERKINEERR -
EBRTRANBMEER 2 EHE -
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30. Commitments
Capital Commitments

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT
Contracted but not provided for: ELRT# M R
— Acquisition of investment properties — R EME 18,000 —
18,000 —
All capital commitments are due in the coming twelve months. FIBBEARAEEIN AR T ZEARNTE -
31. Operating Leasing Arrangements 3. KEHEZRH
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as HEZARTBAEBKEERNTL T
follows:
2024 2023
ot e )1 -5 —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Within one year —FR 251,633 252,835
In the second year B F 152,349 113,756
In the third year F=F 71,616 40,524
In the fourth year FPF 30,448 10,517
In the fifth year BERF 16,533 3,263
Over five years AFU F - 1,903

522,579 422,798
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31.

Operating Leasing Arrangements
(Continued)

The Group leases its investment properties (note 17) under
operating lease arrangements which run for an initial period of
one to six years (2023: one to six years), with an option to
renew the lease terms at the expiry date or at dates as
mutually agreed between the Group and the respective
tenants. The terms of the leases also require the tenants to pay
rental deposits. The turnover-related rental income received
during the year amounted to HK$2,017,000 (2023:
HK$2,339,000).

Financial Guarantee Contracts

As at 31 December 2024, the Group provided guarantees
amounted to approximately HK$13,172,000 (2023:
HK$40,220,000) to banks with respect to mortgage loans
procured by the purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such
guarantees will be released by banks upon delivery of the
properties to the purchasers and completion of the registration
of the mortgage with the relevant mortgage registration
authorities or settlement of the outstanding mortgage loan. In
the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of the financial
guarantee is not significant.

31.

32.

%‘:‘é“*ﬂ EHF(H‘E

AEBRBELLHAELHEHERENE
(M3E17) VR —ERNF (T _=F
—ERF) ARERISPESAEEES
BARAEFREZHHER - MHKER
MEEERBAABENEEES - FREW
M%%ﬁﬁEﬁZfﬂéﬁHﬁz)\ﬁ,ﬁm,mzoooE
—EF— =4 : 7 #2,339,0007T) °

MBHEREYD

R-Z-NF+-A=+—H AEEHAK
SEVEERNE 2 EZBERMBITRHE
FERAB18,172,00070 (Z T = =4F : Bl

40,220,0007T) ° E%i?f‘ﬁhﬁ%%?&ﬁ%
BERVAEBIRBEELEBRLIZBER

H‘IjUJ_A/ﬁ B RIZBE R RRITAELR
E=ZAR UBERZAFELTEK-
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33. KAFZHBRAR

33. Statement of Financial Position of the

Company
2024 2023
—EB-ME T o=
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ks BRI BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Non-current assets ERHEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG 5 34 545,000 545,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UK B A R 2 FRIE 1,623,122 1,906,498
2,168,122 2,451,498
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H b & U 5108 387 433
Tax recoverable Al 3R 6] 7 18 33 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekBFeEED 594 482
1,014 915
Current liabilities REBERE
Accrued expenses and other payables &=+ 2 8 K H g+ 5018 337 428
Provision for income taxation Frig i E - 2
337 430
Net current assets BREEE 677 485
Net assets FEE 2,168,799 451,983
EQUITY g
Share capital & s 28 28,331 28,331
Reserves s 29 2,140,468 2,423 652
Total equity HELSEE 2,168,799 2,451,983
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34. PHBATSIZHER
R-E-—WNFR—E-_=F+-A=+—H
ZTXEMBATGFEBHOT

34. Interests in Subsidiaries
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation ERTRAEE/ held by the Company Principal activities
AT &H HME EERE HREFFE FATMBHRGENIL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE &
2023
i 3
Billion Glory Properties Hong Kong Paid-up capital HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited
EHEEERAF BiE BRARAEEIT NERE
Bond Rising Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
RBARREE REREBEZ 1T REER
Castle Peak Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property
Properties Limited development
FLEBRENEBRDR B BARRTEEIT NEBR
Eternal Bonus Group British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - — 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited US$1 each
RBRERRES RERAEEE 1T REER
vl
Fortune Together Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
RBERRR ABEBRES MEREBEEEITL REER
LRk
Golden Relay Company Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited HK$100,000
RERRART BiE B AR 8 #100,0007T NERE
Goldwell Property Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Provision of building
Management Limited HK$100,000 management
service
CEMEEEERARA 0 B &R % %100,0007C REBFERRYE
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Particulars of nominal

34. RMBASZH#ER(B)

Principal activities

TEEH

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation BRTRAEE held by the Company
AFER gL/ BERE FRERHE FATMBERE AL
Directly Indirectly
H#& &
2023
—E-CF
Grape Trade Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - - 100% 100%
US$1 each
REBEARES REREEEXSITL
LRK
Harvest Fortune Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%
ikt YN BiE BRBRTERIT
Keep New Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%
Limited HK$1,000
REBREBERAA EE B&RAE 1,000
Lead Properties Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%
BEEXERAA EE BRERAEEIT
One Storage Management Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%
Company Limited
EERMRRERARAR  FE BERRAEEIT
Onwell Properties Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%
ZEERARAHA Bk BERRAEEIT
Power Huge Development Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%
Limited
AEERBRAF BiE BRBRTERIT
Sky Luck (China) Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%
HK$10,000
REHE) ERAR EE B&RAE%100007T

Investment holding
REER
Property investment
NERE
Property
development

LS

Property investment
NERE

Mini-storage
#inE

Property investment

NERE
Property investment
NERE
Property investment

ESSE
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34. RMBASZH#ER(B)

34. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation BRTRAEE held by the Company Principal activities
AF&H EREL/ EERE HMELHE FATFMBESENL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE &
2023
ZZCCF
Soundwill (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands 100,001,000 ordinary 100% - —  Investment holding
shares of HK$1 each
EBEEARES 100,001,000 R EE RBER
BEIT s ERR
Soundwill Real Estate British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - 100% 100%  Investment holding
(China) Limited US$1 each
SHGHE(FE)ER EEHARKES REREBEZSITL REER
27 el
Tang Lung Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - 100% 100%  Property investment
Properties Limited HK$1,000
BRREHEARAT Bk BRRAEE1,0007T NERE
TCP Investment Properties Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - 100% 100%  Property
Limited HK$1,000 development
BiE B#RZA % #1,0007 NEER
Upper Wealthy Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - 100% 100%  Property investment
FHBBRRF BiE BHRAERIT NERE
Wise Ease Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - 100% 100%  Property investment
HK$10,000
HEERARA EE BAIRAE 10,0007 NERE
World Firm Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$200 - 100% 100%  Property investment
BEERAT B BRERAE K200 NERE
KEMILKERNEEE  Mainland China Registered capital of - = 51%  Property
BRAR" RMB25,000,000 development
RE R, AfER NEER
AR #25,000,0007
EESWEHERR Mainland China Registered capital of - 100% 100%  Property
BRAE" RMB30,000,000 development
FEA HMER NEER
AR %30,000,0007C
GETREARE Mainland China Registered capital of - 100% 100%  Property
BRAR" RMB23,000,000 development
RE A AR MEER

AR 123,000,000t



ANNUAL REPORT 2024 “#k

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B S A B

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE=[J#F+ =/ =+ —HI F&E

34. Interests in Subsidiaries (Continued) 34. RMBAS 2z (B)
Notes: B 5 -
* These subsidiaries were established in the Mainland China as * ZEMBRRNPEAMKILBEREER
limited liability companies. Al e
- On 30 April 2024, the Group entered into a Sale and Purchase o RZZBZNEMA=1TAH AREFTLESR
agreement for the disposal of the entire equity interest in a 15 8 DA R S S LB 8 X D BR OB 7T LK FE SR )
subsidiary of the Group, namely %58 i1 LUK FE L M % B B B R L EXERAR QB (WLKRIERD # IR (K #
A (“Lu7K7EH”) at a consideration of RMB14,907,000 (equivalent to B LK TEH49% 1 2 ) HH & LK TE 35 H) 2 5P
approximately HK$15,997,000) to the shareholder of LLi7K & # who IR - RERARM14,907,0007T (FHZF
own 49% of LK TE k. 1L 7K 7€ 3k is company incorporated and R 615,997,0007T) © LLIKIER B — R KR
operating in the Mainland China. The disposal was completed on PR A EMA Y KENAE - HEFIA
27 June 2024. ERZZ_MENAZFTERATK
The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the EED AHEFMENBARESE 2 2T
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and e RNITE W EEREFHAEZEEHAK
therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the EBEESEEEEAZE N TEWSB
principal subsidiaries which materially affect the results or NG
assets of the Group.
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the MEATIRNERBFERTEMERES -
end of the year.
No financial information of the non-wholly owned subsidiaries 2 EWNBATIZHBRERBELELGS Y
is disclosed in the consolidated financial statements as the FEREDWE  RERZEIFITRERY
non-controlling interests are not material to the Group. REBEMS W AE K o
35. Non-Controlling Interests 35. JEIEARKESS
2024 2023
—FE-ME TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETR BETT
As at 1 January n—HA—H 1,623 1,425
Profit for the year & 1A 5 A 280 8
Exchange (loss)/gain on translation of BMEBINER ZE R
foreign operations (E518), Wz (428) 190
Disposal of subsidiary during the year FREEHBAFR (1,475) —
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H - 1,623
The non-controlling interests of subsidiaries that are not 100% FERAREBERI100%ER B AR ZIE
owned by the Group are considered to be immaterial and TR RE S B A TE A A EEE

therefore no further details are disclosed. —HEE o
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FBEALRS
EFRA - TIHRERNEBHATET
BTN AE LRI

36. Related Party Transactions 36.
The following transactions with related parties were, in the
opinion of the Directors, carried out in the ordinary course of

business during the year:

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
Short-lease expense and management IR FABE AL EMN Z A E
fee expense in respect of office WMEFRREERSZ R
premises situated in Guangzhou, EEBMZ(MiE@E)
the Mainland China (note (a)) 244 258
Short-lease expense for leasing MEMRFBAMEIMNZ
carparking spaces situated in FEMNZEHEERS
Guangzhou, the Mainland China (FfS 7% (b))

(note (b)) 18 13
Service income for management and m) AR A B A - ER
consulting service provided to related BERREARBHNRSEE

parties in the Mainland China (note(c)) WA (Bt 5 () 1,132 —
Notes: B 5
(@) 2 subsidiaries of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement @) AAFRRMBAREZREEAR (KAA
with related companies, in which two executive directors of the MERTESHEAER)ZIHERSE - H
Company have interests, for leasing a number of premises situated EZEMRPEANMEMNZMEERAE
in Guangzhou, the Mainland China for office purpose. ® e
(o) For the years ended 31 December 2024, 2 subsidiaries of the o) BEZZ-_WF+-_A=T—HIEFE K
Company entered into tenancy agreements with a related company RARRMBARE-—KBAEAR(ZE ==
(2023: 1), in which a close family member of two executive directors FNARRRMBRTES IR RERER)
of the Company have interests, for leasing one (2023: one) AVAEWwE  BENATFEAEMNZ—
carparking space situated in Guangzhou, the Mainland China. B(ZE==F:—@)=HEA -
© A subsidiary of the Company entered into service agreements with © ARA—RMBAREZREBERR (R
related companies, in which a close family member of the chairman AERORR —BATESTHEER)G L
and an Executive Director of the Company have interests for BRBsHzE URPBEANIREEERE N
providing management and consultancy services in the Mainland PR ©
China.
Key management personnel compensation: FEEEABTH
2024 2023
—T-ME T -=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT
Basic salaries and other benefits EXE e R HMEF 42,415 42,325
Pension costs — defined contribution RIS KA — EREMHK
plans =&l 72 72
42,487 42,397
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37. Disposal of subsidiaries 37. HEMEBAT

Disposal of a subsidiary during year ended R8&E-F-_NE+=-A=+—HL

31 December 2024 FEHERBAT

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group has BE_Z-_NF+_A=+—HILFE &K

disposed 1 subsidiary to independent third party at aggregate SEMBVE=ZAFHEIRNELR - BK

consideration of equivalent to HK$15,997,000 and resulted in BRZE RN E15,997,0007T © EMESHE
gain on disposal of equivalent to HK$1,969,000. The following Uk 25 #8 & 52 75 #1,969,0007T ° LA R & 5I14F
detailed the key disposals of a subsidiary during the year: ANEEZ X EMBAA:

(@  On 30 April 2024, the Group entered into a Sale and @ MZZEZEFMA=TH AEEZ]
Purchase agreement for the disposal of the entire equity VEBHRIAAEENBEARKE
interest in a subsidiary of the Group, namely 2k & /7 LLI 7k MIKIEMEEEBR AR (1K
TEWYEEEBR AR (‘L KIEH”) at a consideration ek ) BB R (R 45 8 1L K TE 35149%
of RMB14,907,000 (equivalent to approximately ) MEILKIEW A 2 IR
HK$15,997,000) to the shareholder of [ 7K f& # who KRB A A REE14,907,0007T FBE R L
own 49% of LLZKTESE. LLIZKFEH, is company incorporated 75#15,097,0007T) © LUZKFER B —K
and operating in the Mainland China. The disposal was B HR B A b 5 I A S I AR A E] e
completed on 27 June 2024. The net assets of LLI7K{EH HESHERZZEZNF A+
at the date of disposal were as follows: BEMK o IWKEHREEBRZFE

EWT:

HK$'000
BT T

Net asset value of entire equity interest REEHE 22 HBIRE
owned by Group BEWEEFE 14,028
Gain on disposal of Ll 7K 7E & LK IE S 2 W & 1,969
15,997

Total consideration wRE

— satisfied by cash — UBRe XM 15,997

Net cash inflow arising from disposal of 1Ll 7K & 3 BEWKEREES 2
W mAERE
Consideration received EWRRE 15,997
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37. Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) 37. HEKMBAT(E)
Disposal of a subsidiary during year ended R8&E-F-_=%+=-H=+—HL
31 December 2023 FEHEMBAT
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has BE_Z-_=F+-_A=+—HLFE &
disposed 1 subsidiary to independent third party at aggregate SEMBLE=FHEIEMNBEAR - &1
consideration of HK$36,080,000. Direct expenses in relation to 8 A& #36,080,0007T * BT E 2 BN
the disposals was HK$650,000 and resulted in gain on X /%78 #650,0007T - B i 2 A E W = B
disposal of HK$11,440,000. The following detailed the key #£11,440,0007C c AT FHFIFRALEZ T2
disposals of a subsidiary during the year: M A A
(o) On 16 March 2023, the Group entered into a sales and ) RZZEZ=F=A+~H XEEF]
purchases agreement to disposal of the entire equity 37 B & sk & Data Chief Limited &
interest in Data Chief Limited and its subsidiary (“‘Data Ht B AR ([Data ChieffEE ) 2 & &
Chief Group”). The disposal of Data Chief Group was % # o Data Chief £ B 2 HEE R =
completed on 31 March 2023. The net assets of Data E-_ZF=ZA=1+—H%MK  Data
Chief Group at the date of disposal were as follows: ChiefSS BN ERB 2 FEENT
HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Investment properties "EYE 23,990
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ENRRWEBRARKIE (12,435)
11,555
Loan assignment BEEE 12,435
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of Data Chief 7 £ Data Chief &£ @ ~ & #
Group F sz 650
Gain on disposal of Data Chief Group i & Data Chief £ & 2 iz z5 11,440
36,080
Total consideration BwRE
— satisfied by cash — UBRE&XH 36,080
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Data Chief & Data Chief s E R E 4+ 2
Group RERAFRE
Consideration received 2R E 36,080
Direct expenses HEAX (650)

35,430
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38. Assets Classified as Held for Sale

On 1 November 2024, the Group entered into 3 sale and
purchase agreements with three independent third parties to
dispose an investment properties at consideration of
HK$7,931,000, with the direct disposal expenses of
HK$1,659,000. As at 31 December 2024, initial deposit of
HK$793,000 was received by the Group from the purchaser
and included in the consolidated statement of financial position
under “trade and other payables”. The disposal was completed
on 3 January 2025.

In accordance with HKFRS 5, the assets relating to the
disposal of investment properties/subsidiaries have been
classified as held for sale in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The disposals do not constitute a
discontinued operation as it does not represent a major line of
business or geographical area of operation.

3. PEAGEZEE

RZE-_NF+—A—B  AEBH=FFE
VEZRAN=HEERRALEREY
¥ R{EBAEE7931,000T  HELERH
¥ A75 1,659,000 c RZEZUF+ =
A=+—RH AEEXREHWI FHZS
P 793,0007T + Wt A ARG BT 75 #h R 3= &
(B RHMENZKEIF ZBHEER
“E-RAF—A=ZHZEK °

REBEEVHREEREST  ARLER
EME/WBRARZEEERFEMBMN
MRDPBER/FE ABHEALFEIEERD
e EmE AT TEXRESRLEEE
ZET e

2024 2023

k- e - —

HK$’000 HK$'000

W 7 BETT

Investment properties HEWHE 7,931 —
Total assets classified as held for sale NERFECREE 7,931 —
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39. Financial Instruments 39. BT HR
39.1 Summary of Financial Assets and Liabilities 301 REHNEINZzHBEEERBER
by Category -2
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and REBWBEERBERREBH

liabilities as recognised at the reporting dates are

categorised as follows:

REEE BN :

2024 2023
—T-UE —EC=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRI BT T
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at amortised BB P AR B BB
cost
— Trade receivables, net — B RIRIEFEE 48,895 32,392
— Other receivables and — Bt EWRIBE R £
deposits, net F R 32,710 26,304
— Loan receivables — B ER 234,770 7,958
— Short-term bank deposits — RHRITER 827,153 635,200
— Cash and cash equivalents —RekReEEYD 323,633 503,106
Financial assets at FVTOCI EAFEFAEMEE
WA ZWEEE 39,938 43,006
1,507,099 1,247,966
Financial liabilities MBaE
At amortised cost 17 K K
— Trade payables — B EMN3E (24,231) (24,757)
— Accrued expenses and — BRI B AR EMENRIE
other payables (509,890) (470,893)
— Borrowings, secured — B8 - B (1,359,858) (1,516,799)
(1,893,979) (2,012,449)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at reporting date.

R¥|E B - AR B KA AR
ZHMBEERBBZRAEBEEAYF

BYBEAEZR -
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk (foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk) in the normal course of business.
However, the Directors meet periodically to analyse and
formulate measures to manage the Group’s exposure to
the market risk.

Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies
on its risk management. As the Group’s exposure to the
market risk is kept to a minimum level, the Group has not
used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging
purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes. The most
significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed
to are described below.

(a) Market risk
() Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the
fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates. The Group is
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on its
variable-rate interest bearing borrowings,
loan receivables, restricted bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents. The Group
is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
on fixed-rate short-term bank deposits. The
Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the Group
closely monitors its loan portfolio and
compares the interest rates under loan
agreements with existing banks against new
offers on borrowing rates from different
banks in the loan re-financing and
negotiation process.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
HIBOR arising from the Group’s variable
interest rate instruments.

39. B ITRE

V2 MBRAMREEBEERBE

AEERBEEEBAZEERR R
BE T E R &SRR (OMNER R
A R S A AR R R) o AT
EETHARgR T RHIER RN
EEAKEMSHERAR -

—RME AEBEBLEREREESA
RST KA - HRAKBATSHIHRE R
RN &R - BURREY ERA
FEATETAREAMTAESHZ
Ao AEEY EITALBTITEN
TAEERSZ - AKREMAX Z&
EXUHAREINDAT -

(a) mWHEE
0 FEEE
MERRESHFTAE A
FEEREeRERAT ST
R H)M IR EE) 2 B
Bl - REBREE BB
fBE - ERER - R
RITFERARRE MRS
EEYMEHRSREF
KRy o NEBETBEE B
RHRTERMAYAF
BEFERER - AEBRE
I 48 F S EORBER o A

RHE  UEERERE
KEEmBiET - SRER
TIFRI ER < BE
MR EAARRITIRE 2 H
EEENRIERLE -

AEBZRERENER
REREPREREEF
BHETAELZEHER
E S
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

()

Interest rate risk (Continued)

A fundamental reform of major interest rate
benchmarks is being undertaken globally,
including the replacement of some interbank
offered rates (“IBORs”) with alternative nearly
risk-free rates. Details of the impacts on the
Group’s risk management strategy arising
from the interest rate benchmark reform and
the progress towards implementation of
alternative benchmark interest rates are set
out under “interest rate benchmark reform”
in this note.

The policies to manage interest rate risk
have been followed by the Group since prior
year are considered to be effective.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the reporting date and had
been applied to variable-rate financial
instruments at that date. 25 basis points
increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

The management considered that the
Group’s exposure to future cash flow risk on
variable-rate cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits and bank deposits
at escrow account as a result of the
changes of market interest rate is
insignificant and thus they are not included
in the sensitivity analysis.

39. BB I RGE)
39.2 MBEREREERBE (@)

(a) mWEEE (&)

()

T 2 fz (48

TRAREEZRANRE
EERIETT - BRNEED
T b M R BB RTT
RZEFETRITRAER
B BERMEEENRE
BN SREE f E HE SR AR
2R ERBREERNR
ZEMEE  FHEHRA
B FERO[ A REAEDNE | o

AEBEEFRCKRBE
BRN=RERZBR  BA
FRRB R B AR -

Tl 5 g0 B B 0T
BURE DT TR F R R
HERAHELEEHME
E o WERRZBZZE
FREF T E o o5(8E2h
ZEHIEEEBHMERY
AEAREE B 2 o R
BHE-Z-_=F+=-A=
+—HIEFEBEERE
EERDHT -

EEERS  AEREARR
BT 35 ) R ) i 3L 7 8
ReRBRLFED ZR
BIRTTIF R RN EERS
ZERITERAH ZRER
ERBRITTEKN - Hitd
ABREESZEINA -
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

()

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)
As at 31 December 2024, it is estimated that
a general increase of 25 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would increase the Group’s loss
after tax and decrease the retained profits
by approximately HK$2,349,000 (2023:
increase the Group’s loss after tax and
decrease the retained profits by
approximately HK$3,150,000). There is no
impact on other components of
consolidated equity in response to the
general increase in interest rates. A
decrease of 25 basis points in interest rate
would have had the equal but opposite
effect on the above financial instruments to
the amounts shown above, on the basis that
all other variables remain constant. The
sensitivity results are mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate loan receivables and
borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group mainly
operates and invests in Hong Kong and the
Mainland China. Despite the Group has
certain financial assets at FVTOCI
denominated in US Dollars (‘US$”),no any
significant movements in the HK$/US$
exchange rate is expected as HK$ is
pegged to US$. No foreign currency risk has
been identified for other financial
instruments as they were denominated in the
same currency as the functional currencies
of the group entities to which these
transactions relate.

39. M?%IE(H‘E

302 HEREEEERBKR(E)

(a) WHEEE)
0 FEEEE)

T 3 5 /2% B 9 17 (48)
R-ZEBE-NF+=—A=+
—H - EAEEAMATEH
RERBZERT - Hat
IR FE B2 158 N 25 1E E 2
G A E BB B 18 B 18
O DR B i A £ B
2,349,000t (= & = =
F i-jJuZK%leﬁméﬁéﬁ
B DR B m B 4 S
3,150,0007T) ° Fl| & % g8
ENE e R s HmA
BEBO W\ E - fE”‘“ﬁfr
ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ@ﬂ%ﬁT
ﬂ%ﬁb%ﬂ%%ﬁﬂ%%ﬁ
B R T EER AR & 58
BERZEE - GRRED
MEZFANRAEBERRE
FERWRERREEM®
2 M KRR o

@) SN B
ﬁl\ﬁﬁﬂ % 46 R T R B
BYHBIAEZAFES
ﬂiﬂifiimbE&EZﬂ
c REBMEERTER
PEAMEERIRE - &
EAEBEBETRAYE
FEAEMEEBA Z 815
BENE2(E2DA
B BEHNEEEESH
8 - ENTEEREE, e
EXfrEgFEMEKRE
o BRNEMMEITAEZ
ERBURARRIZE
EEBEEEER -
I A 5 R O R B o
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(i)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk
arising from changes in fair value of
structure bank deposits and fund
investments which carried at FVTPL and
FVTOCI respectively.

No sensitivity analysis an other price risk is
presented for the financial assets at FVTPL
and FVTOCI as the Directors consider a
reasonable possible change to the fair value
of the financial assets at FVTPL and FVTOCI
will not have a significant effect to the
Group’s profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the maximum
exposure to credit risk, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and financial
guarantees issued by the Group arising from the
carrying amount of respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the amount of financial
guarantees disclosed in note 32.

39. MBI ARG
302 BEREEEERBRKR(E)

(a)

(b)

45 g ()

(ii)

H 1t (B 15 /2 B2
AEBR D B A FER
ABmIIE RN FHEFAR
2 U AT R 2 BT
RITFANEEREZA
FEZEMEHEMBER
[ o

R EFR AR AT EE
NBHRBEATEHAR
2 ERAZHBEEZ
ATEZABTREDT
FUAEBBERM2
ERAELEANE
B SRR R
% REAFEHAR L2
B2 BT E E 2 FIH
e 1878 L e 2 0 E
i

15 & E iz R o8 (8 7F 15

REZEZWFER =T =F+=
A=+—H8 &aEEERRBRK
0 AEBRYFHEEET
EEMEXMBEEIZ&SE
BEREBWO ANEERGZEH
SRR TP S BE BRI

BEZREEME L 2 MHE
R AR BRERSE - KK
B2 EE o
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Trade receivables

Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. The Group assesses the
potential customer’s credit quality at new
customer acceptance. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 on trade receivables individually.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Review of past due receivables is
conducted by the Group bi-weekly. Normally,
other than those property leasing rental
receivables which are secured by rental deposits,
the Group does not obtain collateral from other
customers.

39. MBI ARG
302 BEREEEERBRKR(E)

(b) (5K /@R R & EF 1S (&)

)1 e el
EEBERAEEERER  UHE

EREFEERRKA - KAK
BeaEmmErEREHERE
BEPZEREEER - AKEIE
BHMERERF - UEREN
RETBHRDARER - It
Sh - FERERE B MRS R
FOWEK  AEEREEAEE
EREN B 5 UK IR E 5
HEITRERE ©

FBERBEETEESHELZ
BEFEETENEENE - &
EFBETREL R B HE
RZBEELLERBATZH
RN LEBEFZBRE
B UAREPREZBEBER
RE - AEEEREZEHNAY
FEMWRIR - —RM = - FRIAME
eREBEWMZRZENEHER
WHEN  REBENEREAM
B P WEE S o




SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED 4%k 4 B4 2w

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A B

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE = [JF+ =/ =+ —HI F&

39. Financial Instruments (Continued) 30. MBI R(E)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and 302 HEKREEEHERBUR(E)

Policies (Continued)

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (b) EEERERGEFGE)
(Continued)
Loan receivables JEWE
In order to minimise the credit risk, the Directors AEEREEERR  EFCE
have delegated a team responsible for Bk—ZEHK BEETEE
determination of credit limits, interest rate offered HE RETFEPZAEUR
to customers and collaterals received. Monitoring R 2 B - ZRAEEE
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up BF  UEREIERETER
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In E@m A ER o o - AEER
addition, the Group performs impairment BR2EABREEEEENY
assessment under 12-month ECL model on EREREITRER S -

balances individually.

The Directors estimate the estimated loss rates of EFRBEBARETFHA
loan receivables (other than the Unsecured Loan) ZBAREBEENERURER
based on historical observed default rates over the MEREREHR TR
expected life of the debtors as well as the fair value FAE - fEEHE R SR (B A1 R
of the collateral pledged by the customers to the BRON 2 HFTBEE - RIEE
loan receivables. Based on assessment by the TG BRBTFED
Directors, aside from those loan receivables REEREBEZZEERER
credit-impaired in prior year, the loss given default Sy EREHRRcAFE E
is low in view of the fair value of the collaterals and HBEEBRE MAZZT=
the Directors considers the 12-month ECL for WERZF=-=F+=A=+—
other loan receivables is insignificant as at 31 HESRAHMERER 212

December 2024 and 2023. BAEHEEBBILTEK -
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Other receivables and deposits

Management of the Group performs individual
credit evaluations on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits over a certain amount
and collective assessment on the recoverability of
remaining other receivables and deposits based
on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. The management of
the Group believes that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of
other receivables and deposits.

Short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents

The credit risk on short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents of the Group is limited
because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies
and no history of default in the past. No loss
allowance provision for short-term bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents was recognised
upon application of HKFRS 9. The Group has
limited exposure to any single financial institution.

The Group does not have any significant
concentration of credit risk.

39. BB I RGE)
39.2 MBEREREERBE (@)

(b) 15E/EEER % EF 1S (&)

H At EW A TE LG £
AEBEREERRBESRFE
LH - BEKLBAUANSGEAR
EXFRZAGAEER - L
H—E &% 2 B b U IR
Al AW E iR AT ERIE
B WH T HE MUK
BERFIE 2B EETR
BIFfE - AEEEEEMRE-
AEBEEMEBRFERTEZ
RBEHRBALBEANEBE
B R e

FERIRITIF A RBE 2 KRB %
FEY
AEEERRITERARRE
FEeEHEEMZEERRAR -
RRRHFITHAREEREER
AR ELETREEFRZR
TREmMEE BEALEED
iR ERE AU RS ER
FOR - BEBLIEHIIRITFK
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)
The Group’s internal credit risk grading
assessment comprises the following categories:

Internal credit
rating Description

MEBEEFSR

39. %?%IE(H‘E

V2 HEEABEBEEHERBEK(E

(b) 15E/EEER % EF 1S (&)

AEE 2 NEME B R A& R
R AT B B AR K :

Trade receivables

HHRKRIE

Other financial
assets/other items

HibMBEE Hit
IHH

Low risk The counterparty has a low
risk default and does not
have any past-due amounts

1K 2 B HFEHZENRRRE W
TR 8 HA RROE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays after

due dates but usually settle
after due date

BERuE BERAKLEEINRBRER
BAEFEIHBREE

Doubtful There have been significant
increase in credit risk since
initial recognition through
information developed
internally or external
resources

xR BR FHBANERE £ INBRIR 2
B EERRBVL®
RUARE #EE LN

Loss There is evidence indicating
the asset is credit-impaired

&8 ERBRTIEELBREER
B

Write-off There is evidence indicating
that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

i 85 EEBRBETNEBABARE
SR E - B ASEI &
BEEAWE 2 BHE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

ERHREREEEE
— BEERE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

ERHREREEER
— BIEERE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

ERPEREEER
— EEERE

Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired

FREEREEEE
— BEERE

Amount is written off

Wﬁﬁ /T>)\

12-months ECL

REAEREEER

12-months ECL

REAEREEER

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

ERREREEER
— BEERE

Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired

TREBEREEERE
— BEERE

Amount is written off

i 35 5K R
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued) 30. MBI R(E)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and 2R MGEEBERBE(E)
Policies (Continued)
(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (b) EEEMERGEFGE)
(Continued)
The tables below details the credit risk exposures TERENAEEBESTERE
of the Group’s financial assets, which are subject EEBFEcUKEEZEE
to ECL assessment: [ Bz i 1
External Internal 12-month or
creditrating creditrating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
12BAHERHEH
VB IEEER ABREEFR SEBE REAE
2024 2023
CE-FE [—_—_—
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
o st BETT BT T
Financial assets REBERAIIRZ
at amortised costs MBEE
Trade receivables B 5 RWHRE 20 N/A Note 3 Lifetime ECL 48,895 32,392
T A Wi 53 ERESEEEE
N/A Loss Credit-impaired 6,291 4,562
T A &8 BEERE
Loan receivables FEURE R 20 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 234,770 7,958
TiE A (9N 1218 AFEHIEEEE
Loss Credit-impaired 141,776 141,776
& BiEERE
Short-term bank deposits %2 H1 $8 1717 3% 22 Aa3-Aal N/A 12-month ECL 512,898 73,400
@R 12EAEHEEEE
A3-A1 N/A 12-month ECL 314,255 136,700
i A 12EAEHEEREE
Baat N/A 12-month ECL - 425,100
I3 A 12EAEHEERE
827,153 635,200
Cash and cash equivalents & MR E&EEY 22 Aa3-Aal N/A 12-month ECL 131,041 125,182
i A 12EAEHEEEE
A3-A1 N/A 12-month ECL 150,086 87,326
I3 A 12EAEHEERE
B1-Baat N/A 12-month ECL 41,918 289,859
I3 A 1218 AFEHIE BB
323,045 502,367
Other receivables and Hith EYKRIB R FT & N/A Note 1 12-month ECL 32,710 26,304
deposits @A B 51 12EREHEERE
Other items HIEE
Financial guarantee MBERAE LD 32 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 13,172 40,220

contracts (Note 2) (Fft £2) I i 1K & B 12EAEHEEEE
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued) 30. MBI R(E)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and 302 MHEAKREEEHERBUR(E)
Policies (Continued)
(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (b) EEEEERHEEFGE)
(Continued)
Notes: B EE
1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, 1. RETADEERRERE - K
the Group uses past due information to assess EEEADHENTEEER
whether credit risk has increased significantly since BB HERIARE BEEG
initial recognition. e
Past due Not past due Total
B E mia @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT

Other receivables and deposits ~ E i & i 7 18 2 7T &
As at 31 December 2024 n=
As at 31 December 2023 RZTZ=F+=-A=+—

- 32,710 32,710
- 26,304 26,304

2. For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying
amount represents the maximum amount the Group
has guaranteed under the respective contracts. The
fair values of the purchasers’ properties are higher
than the Group’s guaranteed amount to the banks,
and thus the Directors considered the loss given
default in the financial guarantee contracts is low and
the 12-month ECL on financial guarantee contracts
is insignificant.

3. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group assessed the
ECL on trade receivables individually on each
debtor.

The estimated loss rate of each debtor is
estimated based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and
adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In the opinion of the Directors, the lifetime ECL on
trade receivables are considered insignificant.

2. RUBERAOME  RER
BEANSEREEEAOER
ZERBEHE  BRMELILTF
ERRAEERRITELZE
RE - ANEERRHBER
BRZENEBRERE Wi
BERAH1EARHREE
BRI TEK -

3. WESEMHATE AR
1B T 1R R AU H O
B2 Bk - RERMEN
SEER R BREH - A%
LEEE e TE
2 B R T R
#E -

BEBAZGFTEEXRTIRIE
BEHAREFFHRNZBED
BREQREHGE X E
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

The following table shows the movement in ECL
that has been recognised for trade receivables
and loan receivables.

39. BB I RGE)
39.2 MBEREREERBE (@)

(b) 15E/EEER % EF 1S (&)

TR E 5 HOR R
W B R 2 T IR
@JO

ECL (credit-impaired)
BHEERE(FEEREE)

Trade receivables

B oK HIE

Loan receivables

e W

2024 2023 2024 2023
b Jal b T —F Bebcalifl T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR AT T BETR AT T
As at the beginning of the 7 ¥ 25 H34])
reporting period 141,776 141,776 4,562 4,022
Changes due to financial R—A—B®RZ
instruments recognised BT AME
asat 1 January:
— Impairment loss - BBERESSE
reversed - - - (58)
— Write-offs — ¥ 85 - - - (119)
New financial assets EENUBEE
originated - - 1,729 7
As at the end of the REEER
reporting period 141,776 141,776 6,291 4,562

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or when the trade receivables are
over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier.
The Group has taken legal action against the
debtors to recover the amount due and none of
the trade receivables that have been written off is
subject to enforcement activities.

MBEERBREBABARE
s REE B mERAIKE 5
EPImEBACETERKE
ABERFF)  HEHEWFIA
ERRNBBAME AREHLEE
RUE) - R B Al 5E B 5 i UK
R - AEBECH HEBE AR
HUER1TE) - PABEEZIHIRRIA -
235 2 & 5 & W A B
EHRBREE -
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to
liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade
payables, accrued expenses and other payables
and borrowings, and also in respect of its cash
flow management. The Group’s objective is to
ensure adequate funds to meet commitments
associated with its financial liabilities. Cash flows
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis. The
Group will raise funds from the realisation of its
assets if required. The Directors are satisfied that
the Group will be able to meet in full its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

The following tables detail the remaining
contractual maturities at the reporting date of the
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay.

30. MBI R(E)
02 HEEAKEBEEHERBEK(E)

(c)

B & & JE B

ME)E R 15 A 5 B DR
BOREPBAERBZEEZ
Rk NREBBREERZ RN
A - EEHE R & H A AT K
BREEARRERSREE
BAZRBETER - AEH
ZEERERERHNESETT
HHMBREEHIAE - R
ERERBEITYER - 0E
FEOAKERERELEEN
BRET -BEEEMAKER
AJ B 3R K BE S 2 B 18 IR B B
MBEE -

TRANAEE 2 HBRER
WE A R B O HFS

TRBAHARFTRASRE (B
YRR A G =K (0 A5 B 7
K)ERwEBP 2 ERA KRG
B2 FBNF) kA KE AR
Xz &xFAHEE -

31 December 2024
Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash flows

—®¥-WM&E+-A=+-H
YRR -AARELRE
Weighted

average Total More than

interest contractual Within 1 year but
rate Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than More than
% amount cashflow  ondemand 5years 5 Years

i SRR

FHHE RERE —£RE —ElL
) R ag REXE BIEUA RENUE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETR ERTR BT BT
Trade payables BREAE NATER 24,231 24,231 24,231 - -

Accrued expenses and other FEirERAREM

payables ERTHE NATER 389,100 389,100 389,100 - -
Rental deposits received Blifdke NATER 120,790 120,790 60,492 60,298 -
Borrowings EE NATER 1,359,858 1,464,057 953,581 510,476 -
Financial quarantee contracts HRERAD NAFRER - 13,172 13,172 = =
Lease liabilities HEAR 3.93 40,008 42,683 16,917 23,670 2,096
1,933,987 2,054,033 1,457,493 594,444 2,096
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued) 30. MBI R(E)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and 2R MGEEBERBE(E)
Policies (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) FEELEEE)

31 December 2023
Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash flows
ZECZECA=t-H
ABERAIT-RFREERE

Weighted
average Total More than
interest contractual Within 1 year but
rate Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than More than
% amount cash flow on demand 5 years 5 Years
mi CLER i)
T = Reng —ERF —F £
% REE B REXE  BREFEURA RENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT BETT BETT BETT
Trade payables EV ) ENE NA T A 24,757 24,757 24,757 - -
Accrued expenses and other FErERAREM
payables e TR NATEA 347,254 347,254 347,254 - -
Rental deposits received BEhfske NAZTER 123,639 123,639 67,886 54,539 1,214
Borrowings EE 456 1,516,799 1,629,009 654,547 974,462 -
Financial guarantee contracts HEEREN N/AT & - 40,220 40,220 - -
Leas liabilities HEBE 3.93 37,924 40,755 18,050 18,523 4182

2,050,373 2,205,634 1,162,714 1,047,524 5,396
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39. BB IRGE)
39.2 MBEREBREERBX (@)

39. Financial Instruments (Continued)
39.2 Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform

As listed in note 26, the Group’s HIBOR bank borrowings
may be subject to the interest rate benchmark reform.
The Group is closely monitoring the market and
managing the transition to new benchmark interest rates,
including announcements made by the relevant IBOR
regulators.

HIBOR

While the Hong Kong Dollar Overnight Index Average
(“HONIA") has been identified as an alternative to HIBOR,
there is no plan to discontinue HIBOR. The multi-rate
approach has been adopted in Hong Kong, whereby
HIBOR and HONIA will co-exist.

Risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform
The following are the key risks for the Group arising from
the transition:

Interest rate related risks

For contracts which have not been transitioned to the
relevant alternative benchmark rates and without
detailed fallback clauses, if the bilateral negotiations with
the Group’s counterparties are not successfully
concluded before the cessation of HIBOR, there are
significant uncertainties with regard to the interest rate
that would apply. This gives rise to additional interest rate
risk that was not anticipated when the contracts were
entered into.

There are fundamental differences between IBORs and
the various alternative benchmark rates. IBORs are
forward looking term rates published for a period (e.g. 3
months) at the beginning of that period and include an
inter-bank credit spread, whereas alternative benchmark
rates are typically risk-free overnight rates published at
the end of the overnight period with no embedded credit
spread. These differences will result in additional
uncertainty regarding floating rate interest payments.

FIEBEXE

AP 26PN - AEE 2B BR
RERTERLBAETHNRERER
B o AEBIET I E R TR NLE IR
EBFZR@E  BREABRITRE
REEERBEL Z M -

EFERAFEFE
BEATLRBEFOEHR(BETREF
VERBEDELRIEERBTEREXRFE
MEA2EMNE - BRBAIRARFILE
BHBBREFESRETE - FACKR
REBHNERLTFIR Bt AR
EFEMAB TR FIEEHEH
7 o

EFE L Lg ]
AEEREHREEE TEAR
IR

) = A RE R f
HRARBEEHBEREENEXA
BRAEFHMBRIETZAH - MR8
FAERFEFER LR EAEE S
FHERETER - KERZF XA
FHEERTHETEMN - EEEBIERL
B H B R A TR HI R BRSO A R LB h
iH o

RITAEFEESRBAELEN KT
ERAZR - RITAXKEA/REME
B 16 B 1 4 79 75 78 3 7 (1 an 3@ A)
B E BN E - BRRTHEEESR
Z RAEEN X -RANBERAHE
RERBEAMHERBRERNE  T€
EEEEE - EEERGBHIEN
FHEIRBRINTHEFE N
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued) 30. MBI R(E)
39.3 Fair value measurements of financial 3MBIAZAFENE

instruments

(i)  Fair value of financial instruments that are () BEHFEEELILFETE0E
measured at fair value on a recurring basis BITRZAFE
Some of the Group’s financial instruments are HoR&ElH s BT AERSR
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting HEHRUAFETE - TRH
period. The following table gives information about FINMETZENBHEITAEZ R
how the fair values of these financial instruments FE(LEHEZAEBHEERM R
are determined (in particular, the valuation WMABB) ZER -

techniques and inputs used).

Fair value at Fair value Valuation techniques Significant
Financial assets 31 December hierarchy and key inputs unobservable inputs
MBEE R+ZA=+—HZAFE ATFEFE /KERARIZHEABE EFTHEGARR

2024 2023
CECHE emiaycs
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEBTR BB

Investments in unlisted 39,938 43,006  Level 3 Net asset value quoted from  Net asset value of the
funds fund managers underlying investments
FETEERE ERE HeEBAMEEFE HBERENEEFE

WIE




SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED 4%k 4 B4 2w

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B A B

For the year ended 31 December 2024 # 2 = FE = [JF+ =/ =+ —HI F&

39. Financial Instruments (Continued) 30. MBI R(E)
39.3 Fair value measurements of financial 3MBIAZATFEEFE(E)
instruments (Continued)
(i)  Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value (i) FEIRAFEFEZE K
measurements
Financial assets
at FVTOCI
BATEETA
HihZHEUEAZ
MBEE
HK$°000
EETR
At 1 January 2023 R-ZZE-_=%—H—H =
Transfer into Level 3 (note) A B3R (M EE) 39,656
Additions R 311
Total gain in other comprehensive income HEih2mEKA B = 3,036
Exchange realignment M 5 3 B 3
At 31 December 2023 R_E_=%+_RA=+—H 43,006
Additions BR 311
Total loss in other comprehensive expense HEtharmAZBEE (3,383)
Exchange realignment PE 3 =8 4
At 31 December 2024 RZZE_MFE+_HA=+—H 39,938
Note: The Group owns 1.0445% and 0.66% equity interest Wik AEBEB2ESEAREAR
in 2 unlisted funds that are classified as financial FEFAEM R E WA Z B
assets at FVTOCI and are measured at fair value at BEEERSREAHUA
each reporting date. The fair value of the FTEFEZHFETES
investments as at 31 December 2024 amounts to 1.0445% }20.66% # A% # °
HK$39,938,000 (2023: HK$43,006,000). As at RZZZNE+—A=+—
31 December 2024 and 2023, the equity interest of A BREZRAFEARBE
the unlisted funds was measured using a valuation 39,938,000C (=& = =
technique with significant unobservable inputs and 75 #43,006,0007T) © RZE
hence were classified as Level 3 of the fair value —EZE=F+ZA=
hierarchy. +—A  FLETMESHRE
HKAEBEXETAHEHA
HEOEERME - Bt
DERATFEZRNES
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39. Financial Instruments (Continued) 30. MBI R(E)
39.3 Fair value measurements of financial 3MBIAZAFEFE(E)

instruments (Continued)

(iii)  Fair value of financial assets and financial (i) FHFEEERIFLIINFE ;f'g
liabilities that are not measured at fair value B BEERMBEREZ L
on a recurring basis #
The directors of the Company consider that the EERR NEEVBHRERMN
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial B ATTECUBEERY
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the BaEZREEREEQ AR
consolidated financial statements approximate to & o

their respective fair values.

40. Reconciliation of Liabilities Relating to 40. BB & FEN B Z B AR
Financing Activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TR AEEHEREZDHEHRCBEY
relating to financing activities, including both cash and non- B RERSRIIRSEDH B EFHNE
cash changes which represents net debt as presented in Note N2 FES MEFHELEZARDAE
41. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for SHERAEEGERERERANDEAR
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in MEEZHERZREESREZRESRE °

the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.

Dividend Lease
payable liabilities Borrowings Total
FEftBR B HEAE BE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT T BT

As at 1 January 2023 RZZEZ=F—A—H - 50,615 1,774,527 1,825,142
Cash flow, net RenEFH (56,662) (26,099) (340,601) (423,362)
Other non-cash changes: HpiERe 2

New leases entered MEHEE - 11,702 - 11,702

Finance costs recognised EEE A& AR - 1,706 82,873 84,579

Dividends declared KR E 56,662 — - 56,662
As at 31 December 2023 R_E-_=F+-A=+—H — 37,924 1,516,799 1,554,723
Cash flow, net ReREFE (283,309) (23,450) (231,296) (538,055)
Other non-cash changes: HdER e &8

New leases entered FEAE - 24,021 - 24,021

Finance costs recognised ERREE KA - 1,513 74,355 75,868

Dividends declared EEIREE 283,309 - - 283,309

As at 31 December 2024 RZE-_mFE+=-A=+—H - 40,008 1,359,858 1,399,866
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41. Capital Risk Management 41.
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the current year.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt to equity ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated
as the sum of the Group’s borrowings and lease liabilities less
cash and cash equivalents and other bank deposits as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital
is calculated as total equity, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain the
debt to equity ratio at a manageable level.

EXERER
AREERER Y TEAFARAAEE
BB A B AR R D)
A E R R -

AR BT E SRR BT S IR A AL -
WUEAENEE - AR B E AL -
A SR [ 7 38 22 0 AR R B 2 R B - AR R
BB ARG ATH o A O
BiZ - B REFELED -

AEBNBAEH B L XEERNFE
BBRMBERN)ERER - FEHURAH
BRAKRAAEEEERHEREZEM
MRE MIREFEY R EMIRITFHRH -
RERAR A MBS R PARZ 2t 458
AE-AKEEEATRARYESLERN
AERZKE -

2024 2023
ot~ =l )1 - —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T IT
Borrowings P 1,359,858 1,516,799
Lease liabilities HEARE 40,008 37,924
— Financial assets at FVTOCI — AT EFAEMEZE
WAZ B BEE (39,938) (43,006)
— Short-term bank deposits — WHRITER (827,153) (635,200)
— Cash and cash equivalents - RekReFEY (323,633) (503,106)
Net debt BES 209,142 373,411
Total equity ERmEHE 15,676,741 18,459,862
Net debt to equity ratio FEEHERIE 0.013:1 0.020:1
42. Event After Reporting Period 42, REMIEEIR

On 7 March 2025, the Company published an announcement
in relation to the Proposal of Scheme Shareholders for
privatization of the Company. The implementations of the
Proposal and the Scheme are subject to fulfillment or waiver of
conditions set out in the announcement.

R-ZE-AF=AtH  ARAFFEIBR
BARBLB 2 ZEZERAM - %2
ENE VI S N s A IS =309
Be® HAET -
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